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through our doors expected our shelves to be stocked with quality products at
everyday low prices as well as complete home improvement solutions to enable
them to add the personal touches to turn their houses into homes. They return
time and time again knowing that Lowe’s employees are striving to exceed their
expectations by treating each customer as Lowe’s most important customer.

IIlVGStiIlg in what matters. To our customers, home ownership is about more than just a roof over your head.

It is the American dream, an expression of their individuality and an investment that is the centerpiece of their lives. We are
pleased our customers have chosen Lowe’s to help enhance their home and improve their investment. We stand ready to serve
them with an unwavering commitment to offer the best brands at everyday low prices with exceptional service that shows our
customers they are Lowe’s most important customer.

Our continued expansion in metropolitan as well as small-market areas has increased our national presence and market
penetration. But our growth goes beyond geographic expansion of stores. With exciting new products and improved
installation and special order capabilities, our customers are finding more than just home improvement products in our stores.
They are finding well-trained, knowledgeable employees, backed by state-of-the-art technology and an experienced
management team who understands that sustainable success is dependent on serving and satisfying nearly 521 million

customers... one at a time.

Company Profile // Lowe’s Companies, Inc. is a $30.8 billion retailer of a complete line of home improvement products, equipment and
services. The company, through its subsidiaries, serves more than 10 million do-it-yourself and commercial business customers each week
through more than 950 stores in 45 states. Named FORTUNE" magazine’s Most Admired Specialty Retailer for the second year in a row,
Lowe’s is the world’s second largest home improvement retailer and the 11th largest retailer in the U.S. // Lowe’s expansion continues,
opening a new store on average every three days. The company’s expansion plans include two prototypes, a 116,000-square-foot (116K)
store for large markets and a 94,000-square-foat (94K) store used primarily to serve smaller markets. Both prototypes include a lawn and

- garden center averaging an additional 31,000 square feet for 116K stores.and an additional 26,000 square feet for 94K stores. At the
beginning of 2004, square footage totaled approximately 109 million square feet. // In 2003, the company opened 130 new stores, the
majority of which were in metropolitan markets. In 2004, the company plans to open 140 new stores and continue its emphasis on cities
with populations greater than 500,000, such as New York, Tampa, and Los Angeles. Lowe’s is an active supporter of the communities it
serves. Through the Lowe’s Heroes volunteer program and the Home Safety Council, the company provides help to civic groups with public
safety projects and shares important home safety and fire prevention information with neighborhoods across the country. // Headquartered
in Mooresville, N.C., the 58-year-old company employs 147,000 people. Approximately 6 percent of Lowe’s stock is owned by employees
through the Lowe’s 401(k) plan. Lowe’s is committed to understanding and reflecting its communities’ diverse cultures in staffing, business
partnerships and the products it sells. Lowe’s is committed to making diversity and inclusion a natural part of the way it does business. //
Lowe’s has been a publicly held company since October 10, 1961. The stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange with shares trading
under the symbol LOW. For more information, visit www.Lowes.com. //




Financial Highlights*

IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA

Increase over ’02 Fiscal "03 Fiscal *02
Net Sales .  181%  $30838  $26112
Gross Margm . e A 71bps** 31.15% 30.44%
Pre-tax Earmngs_f e - 28.-2% 5 2998 . $ 727,3397
E;r;;nés— from Continuing Operatlons . 27.6% $ 1,862 $ 1,459
Earnmgsifrr(r)'m Discontinued Operations, Net of Tax . __MEM ) 15 $ 12
Net Earningg C27.6%  $ 1,877 $ 1471
Earnings Per Share . " .
Basic (Contmumg Opemtzons) . m—__$m”2.37 $ 1.87
(Dzscontmued Operatzons) e $ 0.02~ $ . 0.02
Basic Earnings Per Share I 26.5% $ 239 $ 1.89
Diluted (COHtlnLllﬁé—(S[;erdl;I_O-l;S) . $ 232§ ‘1.83
(Dzscontmued Opemtzons) . . . ”$ » 0.02” $ 0. 02 -
Diluted Earnings Per Share . 26.5% $ 234 $ 185
é;sh D1v1dends Per Share 129.4% $ 0.110 $ 0. 0‘8A54m

* Amounts herein have been adjusted to reflect the 26 Contractor Yard locations sold in 2003 as a discontinucd operation.
** Basis points
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Robert L. Tillman, Chairman & Chief Executive Officer
- and Robert A. Niblock, President

To our shareholders. Back-to-back success is an achievement recognized in both business and sports as representative of true
excellence. A strong year only raises the hurdle for the next, and Lowe’s has a proven track record of consistently strong performance as we've
transformed the company into a leader in the home improvement industry. Rising to the challenge created by record results in 2002, our
success in 2003 is a testament that Lowe’s is providing the products and services that allow Americans to invest in what matters to them.

2003 was a great year for Lowe’s. Under the strong leadership of our experienced management team, we delivered above-plan sales and
earnings despite the weather-affected slow start experienced in the first quarter. After the slow start to spring, we knew we would be facing a
compressed selling season, and our stores would need to be ready. We invested in the business and had the merchandise and staffing in place
to serve our customers as they initiated home improvement projects when weather improved.

That investment was rewarded with strong financial results. Sales from continuing operations for the year totaled $30.8 billion dollars,
up 18.1 percent over fiscal 2002, and comparable store sales increased 6.7 percent. We experienced balanced sales across all of our operating
regions and product categories. In fact, all 18 regions and all 18 product categories delivered positive comparable store sales for the year,
further demonstrating the deep and far-reaching connection we have made with our customers.

Gross margin continues to expand, driven not by higher prices, but rather by our efforts to minimize acquisition and supply chain costs.
Our commitment to everyday low prices remains strong, guaranteeing our customers that they will find the best prices at Lowe’s every day.

Growth in gross margin, combined with effective expense control, led to an industry leading, and Lowe’s record, 10.7 percent operating
margin for the year.

Net earnings grew by 27.6 percent in 2003 and diluted earnings per share increased to $2.34, up 26.5 percent over 2002.

We reached many significant milestones in 2003. Lowe’s crossed $30 billion in sales, shareholders’ equity exceeded $10 billion, and we
took the final step in our transformation to a national, big-box home improvement retailer when we sold the 26 commodity-focused
Contractor Yard locations. This transaction allows us to hone our focus on our retail and targeted commercial customers.

In fiscal 2003, we opened 130 stores, including five relocations, bringing our store count to 952. We entered Chicago with three stores and
added additional locations in strategic markets like Los Angeles, New York, Detroit and Memphis. We also entered many smaller markets
across America, making Lowe’s more and more convenient for home improvement consumers around the country.

A key component of our success in America’s smaller markets is our new 94,000-square-foot prototype store. Designed to efficiently serve
single-store markets across the country, we opened the first prototype in March and ended the year with 32 of our 94,000-square-foot stores.
We designed this prototype to have the same look and feel as our larger stores, and our customer feedback confirms that we met our objective.
We continue to be pleased with the results these stores are delivering, and the communities we’re entering are greeting us with excitement.

Our back-to-back success provides even more confidence in our future. The home improvement industry is strong and growing. In fact,
the Home Improvement Research Institute estimates nearly five percent growth in home improvement spending each year over the next
several years. That growth is buttressed by the strongest housing market on record. In 2003, housing turnover reached record levels, and that
strength is expected to continue into 2004 and beyond. Increases in disposable income, improving equity markets, and low mortgage rates
that fuel a strong refinancing market have propelled home improvement spending and helped make affordable housing available to those
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percent at the end of 2003.

These macroeconomic forces were not the only driver of our past success, but they provide confidence that the future is bright for Lowe’s,
Qur strength and the strength of the home improvement industry is driven by several factors — demographic, social and economic.

First, evolving demographic trends have been, and will continue to be, a positive force for Lowe’s and the home improvement industry.

The large and influential Baby Boomer population is entering the peak second-home buying age and is driving a robust second-home market.

Driven by this phenomenon, some estimates suggest that 150,000 second homes will be built each year for the rest of this decade. In
addition, Boomers are more time-strapped than ever and are looking for solutions that make their lives easier. One-stop-shopping
convenience and an ever-expanding array of installation services makes Lowe’s a destination to fulfill their needs.

Generation Xers are in the family formation years and are looking for ways to improve their home’s function, safety and appeal. This
generation values information that allows it to initiate projects. Our informative signage and knowledgeable employees provide just the
resources these customers demand.

And finally, Echo Boomers, also known as Gen Y, are focused on customization, frequently changing everything from paint
to flooring to faucets to fulfill their desire for distinctiveness. This generation is coming of age and is actively influencing many purchasing
decisions today. With over 40,000 products in stock, and hundreds of thousands more available by special order, these customers can find the
products they’re looking for at Lowe’s.

The second force driving home improvement is diversity. Home ownership among minorities is growing rapidly in the U.S., driven by
an immigrant population focused on the American dream of owning a home. Harvard’s Joint Center for Housing Studies reports that in
2001, minorities accounted for 32 percent of first-time homebuyers, and from 1995 to 2001, they represented 60 percent of the increase in
households. Bilingual employees, targeted advertising and unique products to meet varying cultural styles are just a few of the things we’re
doing at Lowe’s to meet the needs of our increasingly diverse customers.

Third, Americans are more focused than ever on the comfort, security and warmth that home has to offer. As Americans deal with a
tumultuous geopolitical environment and the stress of everyday life, keeping in touch with the people who matter remains a top priority, and
they’re doing it at home. Home ownership was a cornerstone of the American dream long before interest rates began their latest decline in
2001, and we believe a focus on the home and home improvement will remain part of the American dream even as interest rates rise.

Finally, a growing trend in home improvement is a phenomenon known as “serial remodeling.” Inspired by innovation and energy
efficiency, home improvement is being driven less by need and more by a sense of style and a desire to trade-up. Many customers are
repainting their rooms with the most fashionable new color or replacing a working washer and dryer with new, more efficient appliances that
clean better while using less water and energy. Innovation is the key, and we encourage our vendors to ensure they are providing inspirational
products for our customers. This trend is in lockstep with our up-the-continuum merchandising strategy that ensures our customers will find
quality and innovation in the products we offer at everyday low prices.

We'll capitalize on these trends by adding stores as well as enhancing existing stores to ensure we’re providing exactly what our
customers are looking for. Lowe’s track record for keeping its finger on the pulse of the consumer is strong. In early 2004, Lowe’s was named
Most Admired Specialty Retailer by FORTUNE® magazine for a second year in a row. That recognition is representative of the service our
employees provided our customers and the financial results we delivered.

I recently announced my plan to retire at the end of fiscal 2004, and Robert Niblock has been named chairman and chief executive officer-
elect. I have full confidence in his ability to build on our success and take Lowe’s to its next level of growth and development. With Lowe’s
strategic course firmly in place and a deep and talented management team committed to ensuring Lowe’s future success, I am convinced that
now is the ideal time for me to continue the process of handing the reins of the company over to Robert. I look forward to working closely with
him this year as we execute a smooth and orderly transition. Under the direction of Robert and Lowe’s seasoned management team, and with a
bright outlook for the home improvement industry, I am confident we can look forward to many more years of success.

A

ROBERT L. TILLMAN
CHATRMAN OF THE BOARD AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
April 16, 2004 Mooresville, NC
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'To our shareholders. AsIreflecton my first year as president of Lowe’s, I'm proud of the results we delivered in 2003. Our
employees were passionate about taking care of our customers, focused on executing the fundamentals of retailing, and delivered exceptional
results that wouldn’t have been possible without the entire team working as one.

We've described for years the value we see in developing the appropriate infrastructure to manage our growing store base. The value of
our structure was highlighted in 2003 as comparable store sales ramped from flat in the first quarter to over 12 percent in the third quarter.
Our state-of-the-art logistics and distribution infrastructure allowed us to keep our stores in stock with the right products to satisfy the strong
demand we experienced in the second half of the year, while leveraging inventory growth. Qur disciplined operating structure allowed us to
match payroll hours to sales across the entire chain, with a controlled model that leverages sales and ensures customer service levels remain
high. The results we delivered in 2003, including strong sales, great customer service and high in-stock levels, are a testament to the value of
that structure and could not have been achieved without the entire Lowe’s team working together.

For fiscal 2004, we added two new divisions and three regions to our store operations structure to ensure an effective management system
is in place to deliver our customers a consistent Lowe’s experience no matter where they shop.

While execution of the basics is fundamental to our success, Installed Sales, Special Order Sales (SOS) and our Commercial Business
Customer (CBC) initiatives continue to evolve to better serve our customers. This year, we began rolling out an enhanced installed sales
model designed to better communicate and manage our customers’ expectations. At the end of 2003, the new model was in place in 380
stores. We continue to be extremely pleased with the results of this model. Customers, installers and employees tell us the model works, and
we are seeing the success in improving customer satisfaction scores. Over 90 percent of the customers experiencing the model say they would
use Lowe’s again for a future installed project. We expect to have the new model in all stores by the end of fiscal 2004, allowing us to better
serve the growing “do-it-for-me” customer base.

Enhancements to our SOS process continue to make selecting, ordering and tracking these sales more convenient and worry-free. In the
second half of 2003, we completed the rollout of our SOS Express program for fashion plumbing. The new automated system improves
inventory visibility and, utilizing a dedicated distribution facility, provides accurate and timely fulfillment of orders. Additionally, the new
system informs the customer about related products needed to complete or complement the project. As with our installed sales model, the best
way to measure the success of this new model is with customer satisfaction. We’ve seen sales return rates cut in half — evidence of the efficient
new technology. One of the most exciting aspects of SOS Express is that the model can be leveraged into many other categories. We will explore
these opportunities in 2004 and beyond, as we provide our customers a more efficient process to fulfill their desire to differentiate their homes.

And finally, our CBC business continues to drive strong results, delivering comparable store sales higher than the company average in 2003.
Our commitment to commercial customers remains strong, and we're excited about the growth prospects going forward. Providing great inventory
depth and knowledgeable staff is paramount to our success with commercial customers. We're utilizing our direct marketing capabilities to remind
commercial customers we have the products and brands they need, in the quantities they demand, all at everyday low prices.

Our merchandising organization continues to partner with well-known national vendors to develop and provide great products for our
customers. An excellent example unveiled in 2003 is American Tradition® Signature Colors? An enhancement of our existing American Tradition
line of paint, Signature Colors adds a premium assortment of thousands of designer colors to our interior paint offering. Shades inspired by Eddie
Bauer; Nickelodeon, Waverly® and other well-known brands give our customers unmatched selection to add their unique style to any room.

This is just one of the numerous examples of how our merchants are constantly working with our vendors to differentiate Lowe’s product
offering, keep our stores fresh and ensure were providing our customers exciting new products that make home improvement easier and
more enjoyable.

Qur 2003 marketing programs were successful in solidifying Lowe’s position as a preeminent national retailer where do-it-yourself and
commercial customers alike can find the products and services to turn a house into a home. Our “Improving Home Improvement
campaign continues to evolve and is hitting home with customers across America. Our marketing message is representative of the consistently
inviting and inspirational shopping environment found in each of our stores across the country.

Our theme for this year’s National Sales Meeting was Defining Opportunity, and that’s just what we intend to do in 2004. We see oppor-
tunities in everything we do, as we strive to better serve our customers and to fulfill Lowe’s vision to be the first choice for home improvement

®

in each and every market we serve. From the initial welcome as a customer walks through our doors, to an enthusiastic salesperson who helps
a dream become a reality, we will continually look for opportunities to enhance customer service and make our customers’ lives easier.

I am honored by the support and confidence of Bob Tillman, which led to the Board of Directors’ decision to name me chairman and
CEO-elect. I am also very fortunate to have in place a seasoned executive team who, in their collective experience, represent the gold standard
in the home improvement industry. Together, we look forward to continuing to drive value for our shareholders, customers, employees,
suppliers, and the communities we serve. Building on Bob Tillman’s vision, which launched Lowe’s into a new era more than a decade ago,
look forward to the challenges and opportunities ahead of us. I accept this responsibility knowing our company has a clear vision, a sound
- strategy, high quality leadership and an enabling culture that provides the foundation I'm confident will lead to continued success.

FUAN

ROBERT A, NIBLOCK
PRESIDENT
April 16, 2004 Mooresville, NC
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115 TNE mMost aimazing tning to watcn. vvien Custommers start descriving
their home to you, their eyes come to life. You no longer see a man

or woman looking for a product, you see a person passionate about making
the time they spend at home with family and friends more rewarding.”

TERESA JOHNSON | District Manager

IHVGStiIlg in the American dream. The house you can see from the

street is just the beginning of the place our customers call home. Behind the front door
lies a family retreat, a place to entertain friends and a place to teach children to take their
first steps. It is most often a family’s largest single investment and, as a result, home
improvement decisions are far more than an impulse purchase. Because we understand
how much home means to our customers, we are committed to providing what they need
to get it right the first time. From the wide variety of products we offer, to the professional

services that leverage our customers’ time, we want to ensure Lowe’s is the first choice for their home improvement needs.

As Lowe’s continues to expand across the U.S., our stores reflect the markets they serve. From the specialized roofing
requirements of our customers in southwestern ranches, to the space-saving home organization needs of our customers in
metropolitan brownstones, Lowe’s conducts extensive research into the home improvement needs of each market and
continues to work with our customers, vendors and employees to fine-tune our product offering, ensuring that all our
customers find just what they need.

As an increasingly diverse customer base takes part in the American dream of home ownership, Lowe’s has positioned
itself to offer products that allow customers to express their individuality through their homes. From the Jackson & Perkins®
roses that adorn front lawns, to the custom decks that provide a backyard retreat, Lowe’s is pleased to offer over 40,000
products in stock and hundreds of thousands more by special order, allowing our customers’ homes to become a personal
reflection of who they are — unique, individual and diverse. And with so many choices across the entire price continuum,

customers can find just the products they need at everyday low prices.
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“This 1s just
the right color.”
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small as a screw for the hinge or the entire front door, our customers do
not compromise. They don’t see it as making choices for their homes;
they see it as making choices for their families. Every decision is
passionate, driven by their own personal style and sense of comfort.”

LISMAN DOLPHY | Store Manager, Alton, IL

Investing in the ideal shopping experience. At Lowe’s, we know
Porcelain Red is not the same as Richly Red and there’s more than a shade difference between

almost the right color and just the right color. From our thousands of colors of paint to over
250 appliances in-stock, customers can find just what they’re looking for at Lowe’s. And with
several showrooms under one roof, it’s easy for our customers to do more than buy products.

They can find complete solutions for their home improvement projects.

—— From the commercial business customer supported by a dedicated service desk and

employees trained to handle their more complex needs, to the novice do-it-yourselfer beginning her first home improvement
project, our goal is to make sure the shopping experience is satisfying for every customer. Wide, bright aisles, well-stocked shelves,
simple directional signage, and organized store layouts ensure our customers find a shopping experience unmatched in the
industry. With a team of certified specialists available to assist customers with home improvement questions, help from courteous,
knowledgeable employees is always close by.

In 2003, Lowe’s enhanced its installation services model and improved the experience for those customers with little time
or inclination to complete major projects. Customers are guided through the installation process with clearly defined time frames
and expectations. As Lowe’s certified installers work to complete the installation, customers receive follow-up phone calls,
and after the installation is completed, an on-site job inspection is conducted to ensure the 100 percent satisfaction that customers
have come to expect from Lowe’s. Our customers take comfort in knowing that a company with 58 years of experience in home
improvement stands behind the job.

Customers looking for ways to express their unique tastes through products beyond what we carry on our shelves will be excited
by the enhancements to our special order sales (SOS) program. Through technological improvements customers can view available
special order products and their features with relative ease. Additionally, the ordering process was upgraded to allow electronic
order placement, giving employees and customers the opportunity to monitor an order from the time it is placed until the order is
completed and received. The new solution substantially reduced the error rate in millwork special orders and significantly increased
average ticket sales in that category. Building on our success with millwork, we rolled out SOS Express in late 2003 for our fashion
plumbing category, tying automated SOS systems with enhanced distribution capabilities. Additional opportunities to utilize this
technology lie in the months and years ahead as we bring process improvements to additional product categories.

As these enhancements to our installed sales model and special order program improve the experience for our customers, we're
confident we will capture a more significant portion of the installation and special order markets, adding value for our shareholders.
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national brands mean lasting quality and getting it right the first time.
To our customers, it’s the difference between one coat of paint and
three coats. It’s the difference between a nice lawn and lawn envy.”

DEBBIE TEMPLE | Merchandising Director

Investing in what customers want. For retail and commercial customers
alike, availability of brand-name products at everyday low prices is a big part of the shopping
decision. At Lowe’s, we know our success and the success of the products we offer go hand

in hand. Strategic alliances allow us to enhance our offerings with new, exclusive products.
For example, our relationship with Pella®, a millwork manufacturer known for high standards
and quality products, began with a program focused on wooden doors and windows. The

relationship expanded, capitalizing on the increasingly growing vinyl window market by
creating Thermastar; a complete line of vinyl windows of unsurpassed quality. Today, we’re moving rapidly to convert every Lowe’s
store into a Pella Design Center store, highlighting the extended line of Pella-branded products that are suited for each particular
market we serve. A significant partnership for Lowe’s and Pella. .. developed from a window of opportunity.

As Lowe’s continues to build its brand through alliances with preeminent national brands, we are able to increase convenience for
our customers by offering complete home improvement solutions under one roof. Customers can find complete outdoor solutions
including Bayer Advanced™ plush green lawn care products, Cub Cadet” and Husqvarna® outdoor power equipment, a full line of
award-winning Jackson & Perkins® roses, stylish and durable Coleman® outdoor furniture, powerful Jenn-Air® grills and unmatched
National Geographic™ birding products. Our Signature Colors® premium paints feature thousands of colors, allowing customers
to autograph their homes with designer palettes from names like Nickelodeon™ and Eddie Bauer® to Waverly” And we’ve got every
other aspect of home covered, including offering the award-winning designs of Kichler® lighting, the innovation of KitchenAid® and
Whirlpool® appliances, the flexibility of Shop-Vac® wet/dry vacuums and the durability of Bosch and Hitachi power tools and accessories.

We have a deep sense of appreciation, respect and responsibility for the brands entrusted to us, and we are focused on the
needs of our customers. Our up-the-continuum strategy, coupled with our everyday low price guarantee, ensures we have the right
brands, inspirational products and a wide range of solutions that meet every budget and taste.

Lowe’s realizes the tools our customers need go beyond the tools on our shelves. Our customers can find the educational
tools at Lowe’s that build confidence to initiate projects. Free weekly “How-To” clinics at every store offer our customers the
opportunity to broaden their knowledge and develop their home improvement skills. Through affinity clubs such as Lowe’s
Garden Club® and Lowe’s Woodworkers Club; customers receive exclusive offers, fun projects, and tips throughout the year in their
particular areas of interest — all at no cost to them. And home improvement education continues online at Lowes.com with an
online How-To Library containing a wealth of information available to our customers, from Creative Ideas magazine, to step-by-
step installation and remodeling procedures. Whether their needs are simple or complex, Lowe’s is committed to make the
investment in what our customers want.

2003 ANNUAL REPORT | 11




“This is who
I come to for advice
and support.”
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come in. I know they have choices, and just the fact they choose to come back
time and time again lets me know our employees are doing it right.”

MIKE HICKS | District Manager

Investing 1n our ernployees. Behind each red vest, our customers can find
direction, encouragement and advice. At Lowe’s our culture is one of service and we are
committed to equipping our employees with the right tools to satisfy our diverse customers’
needs. In addition to ongoing comprehensive training, Lowe’s enhanced our Customers First
program in 2003, a program designed to define excellence in service and execution of the
fundamentals of retailing. While everyday low prices and quality products bring customers

through our doors, it’s the people and the level of service that keep them coming back.

Our people are the foundation of our success and the primary contact with customers. An investment in them is an
investment in the long-term success of Lowe’s. In addition to competitive compensation and bonus opportunities, Lowe’s
offers employee benefits such as an employee stock purchase plan, which provides employees the opportunity to purchase
Lowe’s stock at a discount and encourages them to share in the ownership of the company. Through the company’s 401 (k)
retirement savings vehicle, contributing employees receive a baseline match with the opportunity to earn an additional
performance match as a reward for helping Lowe’s reach its earnings goals.

Lowe’s encourages employees to grow with the company and supports this growth with financial assistance to attend
colleges and universities, executive development opportunities and management training programs. Qur store manager
training program, an integral part of our management development, seeks to cultivate tomorrow’s store managers through
extensive training sessions. As a part of the program, Larry Stone and other members of Lowe’s executive management team
are actively involved in providing insight to the store managers of tomorrow, a testament to the importance Lowe’s places on
continuity in management and the sharing of knowledge. With a culture of promoting from within, Lowe’s has a pipeline of
seasoned talent ready for the opportunity to manage a new Lowe’s store.

The culture at Lowe’s is one of dignity, mutual respect, personal pride and fairness, which fosters an environment
committed to diversity and inclusion. As our workforce grows, open communication across the chain continues to be a focus,
nourished through our monthly employee newsletter, the Lowedown, sharing relevant company information with all employees.
Through employee surveys and open doors to management, employees are invited to share their thoughts, ideas and
suggestions. The foundation on which Lowe’s stands is made up of our employees, 147,000 and growing. Providing world-class
service one customer at a time, Lowe’s employees stimulate innovation and help maximize the performance of the company.
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“This 1s where I live.”
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- vvien a new neignoor moves 1 next door to you, 1 tnink everyone s
initial reaction is the same. You hope they will be friendly, courteous, and
a good fit within the community. [ get excited every time we announce a
new Lowe’s store, because that’s just the kind of neighbor we are.”

JORGE RODRIGUEZ | Store Manager, Bryan, TX

IHVCStil’lg nationwide. we are meeting our customers where they live. In their
neighborhoods with new stores; at their homes with an enhanced installed sales model;
and online with educational and purchasing tools on Lowes.com. We answered the call
to become increasingly more convenient with 130 new stores in 2003, expanding with
both our 116,000-square-foot prototype in metro markets and our 94,000-square-foot
store predominately in the smaller markets of the U.S. Incredible growth opporAtunities
still remain ... opportunities that will continue to broaden Lowe’s position as a one-stop
shopping location for home improvement. With 140 stores planned for 2004, we will continue to increase our national
presence, market penetration and convenience for our customers.

For our customers, convenience means more than just a store closer to their homes. It means having the right products
at the right time in the right places and at the right prices. And it’s the part of Lowe’s most customers never see that enables us
to deliver on our promise. Behind the well-stocked shelves of products in the quantities necessary to meet our customers’
needs is a distribution infrastructure that includes a network of nine state-of-the-art regional distribution centers, allowing us
to flow product efficiently to every store, regardless of the location. Efficient distribution is the key to profitably serving small
markets and vital to flowing product to high-volume, large markets to maximize sales.

And we are more than a home improvement store to the markets we serve. We are a good neighbor. During the year, Lowe’s
responded to more than 40 natural disasters in 23 states. Following Hurricane Isabel and the California wildfires, Lowe’s and
its employees rushed relief supplies to aid victims of the disasters. Through the combination of a Lowe’s customer donation
program, corporate contributions, and Lowe’s Racing for Relief program with Team Lowe’s NASCAR driver Jimmie Johnson,
Lowe’s and its customers were able to contribute over $580,000 in response to these two disasters alone.

As a co-sponsor with Whirlpool Corporation on the Habitat for Humanity Jimmy Carter Work Project, Lowe’s impacted
communities in the Southeast, donating nearly $375,000 to facilitate the construction of more than 100 homes. And as a
continuation of its long-standing support, in 2004, Lowe’s will donate $2 million to help families achieve the dream of home
ownership by joining forces with Habitat across the country as the national partner for Habitat’s Women Build program.

Fulfilling Lowe’s mission to improve the communities it serves, Lowe’s Charitable and Educational Foundation awarded ten
$100,000 grants in 2003, with six of them going to K-12 public education systems throughout the country. Additionaily, Lowe’s
is a proud supporter of the American Red Cross, the Home Safety Council, United Way of America and numerous nonprofit
organizations and programs that help communities across the country. Lowe’s also encourages volunteerism through the Lowe’s
Heroes program, a company-wide employee volunteer initiative aimed at addressing safety at home.
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Our customers’ homes are a piece of their dreams. Quality
products and trusted brands are necessary to turn those
dreams into reality. With over 40,000 products in our stores
and hundreds of thousands available through our Special
Order program, our diverse customers have the freedom to

express their unique tastes throughout their homes.
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Special Order Wallpaper
Freight included - Ho Extra Charges
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“How you want it.” “The way you want it.”

Customers return to our stores knowing that whether We know the importance of delivering more than just
they need an accurate cut, a precise color match, products, whether it’s a commercial business customer
professional installation or a quick delivery, they can get pressed for time, or a family beginning a major remodeling
it at Lowe’s at low prices, every day, guaranteed. project. With well-staffed, organized stores and

knowledgeable employees who stand ready to provide
exceptional customer service, Lowe’s delivers a shopping
experience that’s second to none.
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With a state-of-the-art distribution and logistics network With 130 new stores in 2003, we are continuing to meet
that can replenish merchandise quickly, our customers find our customers where they live. And convenience goes
well-stocked shelves with the products they need when they beyond adding new stores. It continues both inside and

need them, in the right quantities for their jobs. outside of our stores with online shopping services,

computer project design, convenient credit options and
delivery services available seven days a week.

IDVCStiIlg in our future. we see tremendous opportunity ahead for Lowe’s. Our expansion continues with 140
stores planned for 2004 and 150 planned for 2005. And we will continue to work toward growth within our existing product

categories to gain market share in the highly fragmented home improvement marketplace.

Our technology continues to evolve to meet the ever-changing needs of our growing customer base, and we will continue
to seek opportunities to serve our customers more efficiently and more effectively, furthering our vision to be our customers’
first choice for home improvement.

As ENERGY STAR” retail partner of the year, FORTUNE® magazine’s Most Admired Specialty Retailer and a supporter
of numerous nonprofit organizations and programs across the country, we take our responsibilities as a corporate citizen
seriously. We look forward to continuing to be good neighbors and socially responsible citizens, adding jobs in our
communities, and lending a helping hand where it’s needed.

We continue to define new opportunities for Lowe’s as the home improvement landscape continues to evolve, but there is
one thing that will not change ... our unwavering focus on serving our customers, making sure they each know they are Lowe’s

most important customer.
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of Earnings.

Management’s Responsibility for Financial Reporting

Lowe’s management is responsible for the preparation, integrity and fair presentation of its published financial statements. These
statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and as such,
include amounts based on management’s best estimates and judgments. Lowe’s management also prepared the other information
included in the annual report and is responsible for its accuracy and consistency with the financial statements.

The Company’s financial statements have been audited by the independent accounting firm Deloitte & Touche LLP, which was given
unrestricted access to all financial records and related data. The Company believes that all representations made to the independent
auditors during their audit were valid and appropriate. Deloitte & Touche’s audit report presented here provides an independent opinion
upon the fairness of the financial statements.

The Company maintains a system of internal control over financial reporting, which is designed to provide reasonable assurance to
Lowe’s management and Board of Directors regarding the preparation of reliable published financial statements. The system includes
appropriate divisions of responsibility, established policies and procedures which include a code of conduct to foster a strong ethical
climate, each of which are communicated throughout the Company, and the careful selection, training and development of its people.
Internal auditors monitor the operation of the internal control system and report findings and recommendations to management and the
Board of Directors, and corrective actions are taken to address control deficiencies and other opportunities for improving the system as
they are identified. The Board, operating through its audit committee, provides oversight to the financial reporting process.

B Vit e

ROBERT L. TILLMAN ROBERT F. HULL, JR.
CHAITRMAN OF THE BOARD AND SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Our Annual Report talks about our future, particularly in the “Letter to Shareholders” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” While we believe our expectations are reasonable, they are not guarantees of future

performance. Our actual results could differ substantially from our expectations because, for example:

* Qur sales are dependent upon the general economic health of the country, variations in the number of new housing starts, the level
of repairs, remodeling and additions to existing homes, commercial building activity, and the availability and cost of financing.
An economic downturn can impact sales because much of our inventory is purchased for discretionary projects, which can be delayed.
In addition, on a short-term basis, weather may impact sales of product groups like lawn and garden, lumber, and building materials.

* Qur expansion strategy may be impacted by environmental regulations, local zoning issues and delays, availability and development
of land, and more stringent land use regulations than we have traditionally experienced as well as the availability of sufficient labor to
facilitate our growth.

* Many of our products, like lumber and plywood, are commodities whose prices fluctuate erratically within an economic cycle.

* Our business is highly competitive, and as we expand to larger markets and to the internet, we may face new forms of competition
which do not exist in some of the markets we have traditionally served.

* The ability to continue our everyday competitive pricing strategy and provide the products that customers want depends on our
vendors providing a reliable supply of inventory at competitive prices and our ability to effectively manage our inventory.

* Our commitment to increase market share and keep prices low requires us to make substantial investment in new technology and
processes whose benefits could take longer than expected and could be difficult to implement.
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This discussion summarizes the significant factors affecting
the Company’s consolidated operating results, financial condition,
liquidity and capital resources during the three-year period ended
January 30, 2004 (i.e., fiscal years 2003, 2002, and 2001). Each of
the fiscal years presented contains 52 weeks of sales and expenses.
This discussion should be read in conjunction with the financial
statements and financial statement footnotes included in this
annual report.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, the Company sold 26
commodity-focused locations operating under The Contractor
Yard name (the “Contractor Yards™). This sale was effected to allow
the Company to continue to focus on its retail and commercial
business. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” the Company has reported the
results of operations of the Contractor Yards as discontinued oper-
ations for fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001.

Executive overview.

Lowe’s serves approximately 10 million customers a week at more
than 950 home improvement stores in 45 states. Lowe’s vision is to
be its customers’ first choice for home improvement in each and
every market served. To do this, Lowe’s focuses on gaining cus-
tomer loyalty by differentiating itself from competitors. Lowe’s
current strategy is to achieve this vision through excellent cus-
tomer service, Everyday Low Prices (EDLP), continued expansion,
development of the appropriate infrastructure to support growth,
retention of its best employees, innovative merchandising strate-
gies, and specialty sales initiatives including Installed Sales, the
Commercial Business Customer and Special Order Sales.

These strategies encompass a variety of initiatives driving
Lowe’s current performance, which collectively contributed to
Lowe’s comparable store sales growth of 6.7% for fiscal 2003.
Other factors contributing to Lowe’s 2003 sales performance
include strong demand fueled by its customers’ commitment to
investing in their homes, supplemented by a solid housing market
and increased disposable income aided by lower Federal individual
income tax withholding rates and income tax rebates. Increased
wholesale prices of lumber and plywood, which translated into
higher retail prices of these products, also contributed to the
increased comparable store sales.

In spite of concerns about the impact of potential increases in
interest rates on the home improvement market, the strength in
the housing market has continued. Mortgage rates have remained
low, keeping housing affordable and facilitating continued
demand. Consumer confidence has improved, which management
believes will contribute to further growth. In addition, the Home
Improvement Research Institute predicts an average of nearly 5%
industry growth per year for the next several years.
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Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Initiatives Driving Performance Lowe’s believes the EDLP strat-
egy and its low-price guarantee increase homeowner and com-
mercial business customer traffic, which leads to increased sales.
Lowe’s is able to maintain its commitment to EDLP primarily by
controlling inventory costs. The Company uses product line
reviews and its global sourcing offices in Asia and other parts of the
world to enhance margins while still providing its customers the
value they have come to expect from Lowe’s.

To ensure that Lowe’s is satisfying its customers’ needs, from
opening price points to premium products, the Company per-
forms rigorous product line reviews. Product line reviews involve
extensive market research, collaboration with vendors, and input
from cross-functional teams to identify the optimal assortments,
selection, brands and displays, as well as ways to lower costs.
Through the product line review process, Lowe’s has identified
areas in which its customers have expressed a desire for products
that are more unique, higher quality or provide more options than
an opening price point product may offer. To satisfy this customer
desire, Lowe’s implemented its up-the-continuum strategy for a
variety of products, which involves offering more product choices
in the middle and upper end of a price range. This initiative results
in higher operating margins, defined as gross margin less selling,
general and administrative expenses (SG&A) and depreciation, for
the Company. As a result of this initiative, Lowe’s is capturing an
increasing amount of the high-end market, which has grown sub-
stantially in the past several years. Based on the success the
Company has experienced to date with this initiative in nearly
every product category, management believes that “up-the-
continuum” is the right strategy for Lowe’s to continue to capital-
ize on this trend and increase comparable store sales growth.

The market research performed during product line reviews
has also led the Company to concentrate on differentiating itself
from competitors through valued national brands. Lowe’s brand-
ing strategy is designed to build the Lowe’s brand quickly, etfi-
ciently, and effectively by offering its customers the best-known,
and most-respected national brands. These are brands that Lowe’s
customers value and trust and increasingly include Lowe’s exclu-
sive brands.

As “do-it-yourself” expands to more “do-it-for-me” projects,
Lowe’s targets three key specialty sales areas: Installed Sales, the
Commercial Business Customer and Special Order Sales. The
Company is targeting these areas because its commercial cus-
tomers perform a significant portion of the “do-it-for-me” remod-
eling services. Lowe’s currently offers a variety of installation serv-
ices, driven by three main categories: kitchen (cabinets, appliances
and countertops), floor coverings, and millwork products. Lowe’s
goal with all installed projects is to make the process as easy as pos-
sible for customers. To do this and keep up with the continued
growth in installed sales, Lowe’s has been working to build a scala-
ble model to enhance its services and improve customer experi-
ence. The Company expects to have this model available in all
Lowe’s stores by the end of fiscal 2004.
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professionals serving the needs of homeowners. These profession-
als include remodelers, small builders, maintenance and property
managers and specialty trades, like electricians, plumbers and
landscapers. Lowe’s also wants to position itself as an alternative to
traditional supply houses and leverage core business strengths to
build the commercial business. These strengths include conven-
ience, ease of finding supplies, the EDLP strategy and specialized
commercial credit programs. The Company believes increasing
sales to commercial business customers offers the opportunity for
increasing overall sales and developing a more loyal customer base.

Lowe’s currently offers hundreds of thousands of products on
special order. Sales of these products have continued to outpace the
Company’s overall sales growth. Lowe’s focus in 2003 was on
developing new technology that will allow the Company to effec-
tively and efficiently add and maintain special order options for its
customers. The Company created an electronic sales tool that
automates the configuration, ordering, fulfillment and replenish-
ment processes for special orders, reduces errors and lead time and
increases visibility. In addition, the system will list other items cus-
tomers may need to complete their project, which should improve
customer satisfaction and increase average ticket.

Expansion and Growth Potential Management believes there is
opportunity for Lowe’s continued growth as the Company moves
forward with store expansion focused on major metropolitan mar-
kets. These metropolitan markets, which the Company defines as
populations greater than 500,000, represent a significant untapped
opportunity for Lowe’s. In fiscal 2003, Lowe’s opened its first stores
in the Chicago metropolitan market and has also announced plans
to open stores in other metropolitan markets. In addition, Lowe’s
expanded its store count in Florida and California, two of the
fastest-growing states in the U.S.

While Lowe’s growth plans are increasingly targeting larger
metropolitan areas, the Company continues to expand in smaller
markets. As a result, Lowe’s store opening plans include two proto-
types: a 116,000-square-foot (116K) store for major metropolitan
markets and a 94,000-square-foot (94K) store primarily to serve
smaller markets. This smaller prototype will provide hundreds of
additional storing opportunities in smaller markets across the
country. The store includes 94,000 square feet of retail selling space
plus an approximate 26,000-square-foot garden center, and has the
same look and feel of Lowe’s larger stores, In the 94K store, Lowe’s
has consolidated service in a number of departments and stocks
20% fewer SKUs than in the 116K stores. While there are fewer
SKUs, the 94K store still offers strong assortments with a rational
mix from opening price points to premium products. For items
not stocked in a 94K store, special order options are available to
meet customer needs. Expanding into these smaller markets is
made possible by Lowe’s logistics and distribution capabilities that
allow the Company to quickly and efficiently supply products to
these stores.

The Company currently has nine regional distribution centers
located across the United States and plans to open an additional
center in 2004 and another in fiscal 2005. The Company also has
nine flatbed distribution centers for warehousing and distributing
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Delivering these products on flat-bed trucks allows employees at
the stores to off-load them quickly. To support Lowe’s store expan-
sion plans, the Company is planning to open three additional
flatbed distribution centers in 2004.

The Company expects to open 140 stores in 2004 (including
approximately four relocations), increasing total square footage by
approximately 14%. To manage this expansion, the Company is
adding two more divisions in fiscal 2004, bringing the total num-
ber of divisions to five. With the addition of these two divisions,
Lowe’s will increase its number of regions from 19 to 22 and its
number of districts from 135 to 150. Lowe’s goal is to maintain a
ratio of approximately 7-8 stores per district manager and 50-60
per regional vice president. This is consistent with Lowe’s commit-
ment to ensure that its stores are executing the Company’s plans
and programs to continue to increase market share and better sat-
isfy customers with more convenience through additional store
openings and an infrastructure to support growth.

Lowe’s is also continuing to focus on improved management in
its stores. As a result, in 2003, Lowe’s changed the management
structure in its stores to provide store managers with a more struc-
tured management team and to provide employees with new
career opportunities. Lowe’s believes this focus on improved man-
agement will help attract and retain the best employees.

Critical accounting policies
and estimates.

The following discussion and analysis of the results of operations
and financial condition are based on the Company’s financial
statements that have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The
preparation of these financial statements requires management to
make estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabili-
ties, revenues and expenses, and related disclosures of contingent
assets and liabilities. The Company bases these estimates on his-
torical results and various other assumptions believed to be rea-
sonable, the results of which form the basis for making estimates
concerning the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily available from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The Company’s significant accounting polices are described in
Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. Management
believes that the following accounting policies affect the more sig-
nificant estimates used in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

Merchandise Inventory The Company records an inventory
reserve for the loss associated with selling discontinued inventories
below cost. This reserve is based on management’s current knowl-
edge with respect to inventory levels, sales trends and historical
experience relating to the liquidation of discontinued inventory.
Management does not believe the Company’s merchandise inven-
tories are subject to significant risk of obsolescence in the near-
term, and management has the ability to adjust purchasing
practices based on anticipated sales trends and general economic
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could result in the need for additional reserves. The Company also
records an inventory reserve for the estimated shrinkage between
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physical inventories. This reserve is based primarily on actual
shrinkage results from previous physical inventories. Changes
in actual shrinkage results from completed physical inventories
could result in revisions to previously estimated shrinkage
expense. Management believes it has sufficient current and histor-
ical knowledge to record reasonable estimates for both of these
inventory reserves.

Vendor Funds The Company receives funds from vendors in the
normal course of business for a variety of reasons, including pur-
chase-volume-related rebates, defective merchandise allowances,
advertising allowances, reimbursement for selling expenses, dis-
plays and third-party, in-store service-related costs. Management
uses projected purchase volumes to determine earnings rates, vali-
dates those projections based on actual and historical purchase
trends and applies those rates to actual purchase volumes to deter-
mine the amount of funds earned by the Company and receivable
from the vendor. Amounts earned could be impacted if actual
purchase volumes differ from projected purchase volumes. The
Company has historically treated volume-related discounts or
rebates as a reduction of inventory cost and reimbursements of
operating expenses received from vendors as a reduction of those
specific expenses. The Company’s historical accounting treatment
for these vendor-provided funds is consistent with Emerging
Issues Task Force (EITF) 02-16 “Accounting by a Customer
(Including a Reseller) for Certain Consideration Received From a
Vendor” with the exception of certain cooperative advertising
allowances and in-store services provided by third parties for
which the costs are ultimately funded by vendors. The Company
previously treated the cooperative advertising allowances and in-
store service funds as a reduction of the related expense. Under
-EITE 02-16, cooperative advertising allowances and in-store serv-
ice funds should be treated as a reduction of inventory cost, unless
they represent a reimbursement of specific, incremental and iden-
tifiable costs incurred by the customer to sell the vendor’s product.
The cooperative advertising and in-store service funds that the
Company receives do not meet the specific, incremental and iden-
tifiable criteria in EITF 02-16. Therefore, for cooperative advertis-
ing and third-party, in-store service fund agreements entered into
after December 31, 2002, which was the effective date of the relat-
ed provision of EITF 02-16, the Company is treating these funds as
a reduction in the cost of inventory and recognizing these funds as
a reduction of cost of sales when the inventory is sold. There is no
impact to the timing of when the funds are received from vendors
or the associated cash flows, but there is an impact to the timing of
income recognition. This accounting change did not have a mate-
rial impact on the fiscal 2003 financial results, since substantially all
of the cooperative advertising allowance and in-store service fund
agreements for fiscal 2003 were entered into prior to December 31,
2002. The Company estimates that this one-time change in
accounting will reduce fiscal 2004 earnings per share by approxi-
mately $0.13 per share.
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relating to worker’s compensation, automobile, general and prod-
uct liability claims. Self-insurance claims filed and claims incurred
but not reported are accrued based upon management’s estimates
of the discounted aggregate liability for uninsured claims incurred
using actuarial assumptions followed in the insurance industry
and historical experience. These estimates are subject to changes in
forecasted payroll, sales and vehicle units, as well as the frequency
and severity of claims. Although management believes it has the
ability to adequately record estimated losses related to claims, it is
possible that actual results could differ from recorded self-insur-
ance liabilities.

Operations.

Net earnings for 2003 increased 28% to $1.9 billion or 6.1% of
sales compared to $1.5 billion or 5.6% of sales for 2002. Net earn-
ings for 2002 increased 44% to $1.5 billion or 5.6% of sales com-
pared to $1.0 billion or 4.7% of sales for 2001. Diluted earnings per
share were $2.34 for 2003 compared to $1.85 for 2002 and $1.30
for 2001. Return on beginning assets, defined as net earnings divid-
ed by beginning total assets, was 11.7% for 2003, compared to
10.7% for 2002 and 9.0% for 2001, and return on beginning share-
holders’ equity, defined as net earnings divided by beginning
shareholders’ equity, was 22.6% for 2003, compared to 22.0% for
2002 and 18.6% for 2001. Return on invested capital, defined as net
earnings plus after-tax interest divided by the sum of beginning
debt and equity, was 16.5% for 2003, compared to 15.1% for 2002
and 13.8% for 2001.

Sales amounts are from continuing operations and exclude
sales from the Contractor Yard locations. The Company recorded
sales of $30.8 billion in 2003, an 18% increase over 2002 sales of
$26.1 billion. Sales for 2002 were 20% higher than 2001 levels. The
increases in sales are attributable to the Company’s ongoing store
expansion and relocation program and comparable store sales
increases. Comparable store sales increased 6.7% in 2003, com-
pared to 5.8% in 2002. Average ticket increased 4% from $56.80 in
2002 to $59.21 in 2003 due in part to the success of the up-the-
continuum initiative as well as Lowe’s credit programs.

The comparable store sales increase in 2003 primarily resulted
from improved sales in every merchandising category due to the
initiatives previously described. During the year, the Company
experienced its strongest sales increases in lumber, building mate-
rials, outdoor power equipment, paint, flooring and home organi-
zation. Major appliances continue to perform well and also exceed-
ed the Company average comparable store sales increase. In addi-
tion, millwork, hardware, walls & windows, nursery and cabinets
performed at approximately the overall corporate average compa-
rable store sales increase. Comparable store sales were positive for
every product category and all geographic regions due in part to
the implementation of the merchandising and operations strate-
gies previously discussed. The Company experienced slight infla-
tion in lumber and building material prices during the year, which
positively impacted comparable store sales by 50 basis points. The
following table presents sales and store information excluding dis-
continued operations:
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Sales (in millions) - $30,838 $26,112 $21,714

Sales Increases 18% 20% 18%
Comparable Store Sales Increases 6.7% 58%  2.5%
Average Ticket $ 5921 §$56.80 $ 55.05
Average Ticket Increases 4% 3% 2%
At end of year:

Stores 952 828 718
Sales Floor Square Feet (in millions) 108.8 94.7 80.7
Average Store Size Square Feet (in thousands) 114 114 112

Gross margin in 2003 was 31.2% of sales compared to 30.4% in
2002. Both of these years showed improvement over the 29.0% rate
achieved in 2001. The gross margin increases were driven not by
higher prices, but rather the reduction of inventory acquisition
costs. These lower inventory acquisition costs resulted in part from
the product line review process, which takes costs out of the supply
chain, as well as the use of the Company’s sourcing offices to import
products when possible. A reduction in inventory shrinkage as a
percentage of sales in all three years presented also contributed to
the increase in margin. From 2002 to 2003, the reduction of inven-
tory shrinkage resulted in a 14 basis point increase in gross margin.

SG&A expenses were $5.5 billion or 18.0% of sales in 2003.
SG&A expenses in the two previous years were $4.7 billion and
$3.9 billion or 17.9% and 17.8% of sales, respectively. During 2003,
SG&A increased 19% compared to the 18% increase in sales. In
2002, SG&A increased 21% compared to the 20% sales increase. In
2001, SG&A increased 17% compared to the 18% sales increase.
The increase as a percent to sales in SG&A in 2003 was primarily
due to stock compensation expense recorded as a result of the
adoption of the fair value recognition provisions of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation,” prospectively for all employee awards
granted or modified after January 31, 2003. The increase as a per-
cent to sales in SG&A in 2002 was primarily due to increased store
salaries combined with increased bonus achievement levels driven
by increased earnings. The decrease as a percent to sales in SG&A
during 2001 was primarily attributable to expense controls involv-
ing payroll and advertising costs.

Store opening costs, which were expensed as incurred, were
$128 million for 2003 compared to $129 million and $140 million
in 2002 and 2001, respectively. These costs are associated with the
opening of 130 stores in 2003 (125 new and five relocated). This
compares to 123 stores in 2002 (112 new and 11 relocated) and 115
stores in 2001 (101 new and 14 relocated). Because store opening
costs are expensed as incurred, the expenses recognized may fluc-
tuate based on the timing of store openings in future or prior peri-
ods. As a percentage of sales, store opening costs were 0.4% for
2003 compared to 0.5% and 0.6% in 2002 and 2001, respectively.
Store opening costs averaged approximately $1.0 million per store
in 2003 and 2002, and $1.2 million in 2001.
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$758 million in 2003, compared to increases of 21% and 26% in
2002 and 2001, respectively. Depreciation as a percentage of sales
was 2.5% for 2003, a slight increase from 2.4% in 2002 and 2001.
Approximately 95% of new stores opened in the last three years
have been owned. Property, less accumulated depreciation,
increased to $11.9 billion at January 30, 2004 compared to
$10.4 billion at January 31, 2003. The increase in property resulted
primarily from the Company’s store expansion program and
increased distribution capacity.

Net interest costs as a percent of sales were 0.6% for 2003, 0.7%
for 2002 and 0.8% for 2001. Net interest costs totaled $180 million
in 2003, $182 million in 2002 and $174 million in 2001. Interest
costs have decreased due to lower debt levels resulting from sched-
uled debt repayments. Interest costs relating to capital leases were
$40 million for 2003 and 2002 and $41 million for 2001. See the
following discussion of liquidity and capital resources.

The Company’s effective income tax rates were 37.9%, 37.6%
and 37.0% in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The higher rates
were primarily related to expansion into states with higher state
income tax rates.

Financial condition, liquidity

and capital resources.

The following table summarizes the Company’s significant
contractual obligations and commercial commitments.

Payments Due by Period

Contractual
Obligations Less than 1-3 4-5 After 5
(In Millions) Total 1 year years years years
Long-Term Debt

(net of discount) $3,773 $ 54 $ 616 $ 67 $3,036
Capital Lease

Obligations 770 60 120 118 472
Operating Leases 3,220 225 438 432 2,125
Purchase Obligations' 105 105 - - -
Total Contractual

Cash Obligations $ 7,868 $ 444 31,174 $617 $ 5,633

Represents contracts for purchases of property and construction of busldings.

The primary sources of liquidity are cash flows from operating
activities. Net cash provided by operating activities from continu-
ing operations was $3.0 billion for 2003 compared to $2.7 billion
and $1.6 billion in 2002 and 2001, respectively. The increase in cash
provided by operating activities during 2003 resulted primarily
from increased net earnings. The increase in cash provided by
operating activities during 2002 resulted primarily from increased
net earnings, improved payables leverage due to better inventory
turns and an increase in operating liabilities primarily due to the
increase in sales volume. Working capital at January 30, 2004 was
$2.3 billion compared to $2.0 billion at January 31, 2003.

The primary component of net cash used in investing activities
from continuing operations continues to be new store facilities and
the infrastructure to support this growth. Cash acquisitions of
fixed assets were $2.4 billion for both 2003 and 2002. This com-
pares to $2.2 billion for 2001. Retail selling space of 108.8 million
square feet as of January 30, 2004 increased 15% over the selling
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total of 94.7 million square feet represented a 17% increase over
February 1, 2002.

Cash flows used in financing activities from continuing opera-
tions were $17 million in 2003, compared to $64 million in 2002.
Cash flows provided by financing activities were $929 million in
2001. Financing uses of cash in 2003 primarily consisted of $87
million from cash dividend payments, $50 million from the repay-
ment of short-term borrowings and $29 million from scheduled
debt repayments. These uses were partially offset by proceeds
generated from stock option exercises totaling $97 million and $52
million in cash proceeds from the employee stock purchase plan.
Financing uses of cash in 2002 primarily consisted of $66 million
from cash dividend payments, $63 million in scheduled debt
repayments and $50 million from the repayment of short-term
borrowings. These uses were partially offset by proceeds generated
from stock option exercises totaling $65 million and $50 million in
cash proceeds from the employee stock purchase plan. The cash
provided by financing activities in 2001 primarily resulted from
the issuance of $580.7 million aggregate principal amount of sen-
ior convertible notes due October 2021 and $1.005 billion aggre-
gate principal amount of convertible notes due February 2021.
These cash inflows of $1.1 billion were offset by a decrease in cash
due to the payment of $60 million in cash dividends, $63 million
in scheduled debt maturities and the repayment of $150 million in
short-term borrowings. The ratio of long-term debt to equity plus
long-term debt was 26.3%, 31.0% and 35.9% as of the fiscal years
ended 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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Sources of Liquidity The Company has an $800 million senior
credit facility. The facility is split into a $400 million five-year
tranche, expiring in August 2006, and a $400 million 365-day
tranche, expiring in July 2004, which is renewable annually. The
facility is used to support the Company’s $800 million commercial
paper program and for short-term borrowings. Borrowings made
are priced based upon market conditions at the time of funding in
accordance with the terms of the senior credit facility. The senior
credit facility contains certain restrictive covenants which include
maintenance of a specific financial ratio. The Company was in
compliance with those covenants at January 30, 2004. Fifteen
banking institutions are participating in the $800 million senior
credit facility and, as of January 30, 2004, there were no outstand-
ing loans under the facility.

In July 2003, the Company terminated a $100 million revolving
credit and security agreement with a financial institution which was
scheduled to expire in November 2003. The remaining outstanding
balance of $50 million was repaid at the time of termination.

Five banks have extended lines of credit aggregating $330 mil-
lion for the purpose of issuing documentary letters of credit and
standby letters of credit. These lines do not have termination dates
but are reviewed periodically. Commitment fees ranging from
.25% to .50% per annum are paid on the amounts of standby let-
ters of credit. Outstanding letters of credit totaled $161 million as
of Janwuary 30, 2004 and $122 million as of January 31, 2003.
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authorized a share repurchase program of up to $1 billion
through the end of 2005. This new program is intended to be
implemented through purchases made from time to time either in
the open market or through private transactions. Shares pur-
chased under the share repurchase program will be retired and
returned to authorized and unissued status. As no shares had been
repurchased as of January 30, 2004, the share repurchase program
had a remaining authorized balance of $1 billion for future com-
mon stock repurchases. ‘

With recent tax law changes, dividends are now a more tax-
efficient method of returning capital to shareholders. As a result,
in the third quarter of 2003, Lowe’s increased its quarterly cash
dividend per share by 20% to $0.03, which will increase cash paid
for dividends in 2004 as compared to 2003.

The Company’s 2004 capital budget is $3.4 billion, inclusive of
approximately $321 million of leases. Approximately 76% of this
planned commitment is for store expansion and new distribution
centers. Expansion plans for 2004 consist of approximately 140
stores, including approximately four relocations of older stores.
This planned expansion is expected to increase sales floor square
footage by approximately 14%. Approximately 2% of the 2004
projects will be build-to-suit leases, 28% will be ground leased
properties and 70% will be owned. The Company does not foresee
acquisitions, domestic or international, as a near-term strategic
initiative given the significant opportunities for expansion in the
U.S. with the Company’s current growth strategy.

At January 30, 2004, the Company operated nine regional distri-
bution centers. In February 2003, the Company began construction
on an additional regional distribution center located in Poinciana,
Florida, which is expected to be operational in the third quarter of
2004. The Company has begun construction on an additional
regional distribution center in Plainfield, Connecticut, to be open in
fiscal 2005. At the end of fiscal 2003, the Company operated nine
flatbed distribution centers for the handling of lumber, building
materials and other long-length items. The Company expects to
open three additional flatbed distribution centers in 2004.

The Company believes that funds from operations will be ade-
quate to finance the 2004 expansion plan and other operating
requirements. However, general economic downturns, fluctuations
in the prices of products and unanticipated impact arising from
competition could have an effect on funds generated from opera-
tions and our future expansion plans. In addition, the availability
of funds through the issuance of commercial paper and new debt
could be adversely affected due to a debt rating downgrade or a
deterioration of certain financial ratios. There are no provisions in
any agreements that would require early cash settlement of exist-
ing debt or leases as a result of a downgrade in the Company’s debt
rating or a decrease in the Company’s stock price. Holders of the
Company’s $580.7 million Senior Convertible notes may convert
their notes into the Company’s common stock if the minimum
investment grade rating is not maintained. There is no indication
that the Company will not be able to maintain this minimum
investment grade rating. In addition, if a change in control of the
Company occurs on or before October 2006, each holder may
require the Company to purchase for cash all or a portion of such
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of the notes at any time beginning October 2006, at a price equal
to the sum of the issue price plus accrued original issue discount
and accrued cash interest, if any, on the redemption date. The
Company’s debt ratings at January 30, 2004 were as follows:

Current Debt Ratings S&P Moody’s Fitch
Commercial Paper Al Pl F1
Senior Debt A A2 A
Outlook Positive Stable Stable
Comparny outlook.

During fiscal 2004, the Company expects to open 140 stores,
resulting in total square footage growth of approximately 14%.
The Company expects total sales to increase approximately 17%
and comparable store sales to increase 5% to 6%. Including the
estimated 50 basis point negative impact of adopting EITF 02-16,
operating margin is expected to decline 20 to 30 basis points. In
addition, store opening costs are expected to be approximately
$137 million. Including the estimated $0.13 per share negative
impact of adopting EITF 02-16, diluted earnings per share of $2.63
to $2.66 are expected for the fiscal year ending January 28, 2005.
Excluding the impact of adopting the accounting change, diluted
earnings per share of $2.76 to $2.79 would be expected.

Quantitative and qualitative disclosures
about market risk.

The Company’s major market risk exposure is the potential loss
arising from the impact of changing interest rates on long-term
debt. The Company currently only has fixed rate debt. The
Company’s policy is to monitor the interest rate risks associated
with this debt, and the Company believes any significant risks
could be offset by available variable rate instruments available
through the Company’s lines of credit. The following tables sum-
marize the Company’s market risks associated with long-term
debt, excluding capital leases. The tables present principal cash
outflows and related interest rates by year of maturity, excluding
unamortized original issue discounts as of January 30, 2004 and
January 31, 2003. The fair values included in the following tables
were determined using quoted market rates or interest rates that
are currently available to the Company on debt with similar terms
and remaining maturities.
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Average Average
Fixed Interest Variable Interest
(Dollars in Millions) Rate Rate Rate Rate
2004 $ 54 7.98% $ - -
2005 608 7.32 - -
2006 8 7.70 - -
2007 61 6.89 - -
2008 6 7.39 - ~-
Thereafter 3,036 4.49% - -
Total $ 3,773 s -
Fair Value $ 3,985 $ -
Long-Term Debt Maturities by Fiscal Year
January 31, 2003
Average Average
Fixed Interest Variable Interest
(Dollars in Millions) Rate Rate Rate Rate
2003 $ 8 7.64% $ - -
2004 55 7.98 - -
2005 609 7.32 - -
2006 8 7.70 - -
2007 61 6.89 - -
Thereafter 3,042 4.49% - -
Total $ 3,783 $ -
Fair Value $ 3,747 $ -
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TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND STOCKHOLDERS OF LOWE'S COMPANIES, INC.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Lowe’s Companies, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of January 30,
2004 and January 31, 2003, and the related consolidated statements of earnings, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three fiscal
years in the period ended January 30, 2004. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is
to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement pres-
entation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company at January 30, 2004 and
January 31, 2003, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended January 30, 2004 in con-
formity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for stock-based compensation
effective February 1, 2003.

Vebith J Towcko LLP

Charlotte, North Carolina
March 19, 2004 (April 2, 2004, as to the third paragraph in Note 10)
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Consolidated Statements of Earnings

(In Millions, Except Per Share Data) January 30, % January 31, % February 1, %
Years Ended on 2004 Sales 2003 Sales 2002 Sales
Net Sales $ 30,838 100.00% $ 26,112 100.00 % $ 21,714 100.00%
Cost of Sales 21,231 68.85 18,164 69.56 15,427 71.05
Gross Margin 9,607 31.15 7,948 30.44 6,287 28.95
Expenses:
Selling, General and Administrative (Note 5) 5,543 17.97 4,676 17.91 3,857 17.76
Store Opening Costs 128 0.42 129 0.49 140 0.64
Depreciation 758 2.46 622 2.38 513 2.36
Interest {Note 15) 180 0.58 182 0.70 174 0.81
Total Expenses 6,609 21.43 5,609 21.48 4,684 21.57
Pre-Tax Earnings 2,998 9.72 2,339 8.96 1,603 7.38
Income Tax Provision (Note 13) 1,136 3.68 880 3.38 593 2.73
Earnings from Continuing Operations 1,862 6.04 1,459 5.58 1,010 4.65
Earnings from Discontinued

Operations, Net of Tax (Note 2) 15 0.05 12 0.05 13 0.06
Net Earnings $ 1,877 6.09% $ 1,471 5.63 % $ 1,023 4.71%
Basic Earnings Per Share (Note 9)
Continuing Operations $ 237 $ 187 $ 131
Discontinued Operations 0.02 0.02 0.02
Basic Earnings per Share $ 239 $ 189 $ 133
Diluted Earnings Per Share (Note 9)
Continuing Operations $ 232 $ 183 $ 128
Discontinued Operations 0.02 0.02 0.02
Diluted Earnings per Share § 234 $ 185 $ 130
Cash Dividends Per Share $ 011 $ 0.09 $ 0.08

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Lowe's CLompanies, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

{In Millions, Except Par Value Data) January 30, 2004 9% Total January 31, 2003 % Total
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,446 7.6% $ 853 5.3%
Short-Term Investments (Note 3) 178 0.9 273 1.7
. Accounts Receivable — Net (Note 1) 131 0.7 172 1.1
Merchandise Inventory (Note 1) 4,584 - 24.1 3,968 24.6
Deferred Income Taxes (Note 13) 59 0.3 58 0.4
Other Assets 289 1.5 244 1.5
Total Current Assets 6,687 35.1 5,568 34.6
Property, Less Accumulated Depreciation (Notes 4 and 5) 11,945 62.7 10,352 64.3
Long-Term Investments (Note 3) 169 0.9 29 0.2
Other Assets (Note 5) 24] 1.3 160 0.9
Total Assets $19,042 100.0% $ 16,109 100.0%
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities:
Short-Term Borrowings (Note 6) $ - -% $ 50 0.3%
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt (Note 7) 77 0.4 29 0.2
Accounts Payable 2,366 12.3 1,943 12.1
Employee Retirement Plans (Note 12) 74 0.4 88 0.5
Accrued Salaries and Wages 335 1.8 306 1.9
Other Current Liabilities {Note 5) 1,516 8.0 1,162 7.2
Total Current Liabilities 4,368 229 3,578 22.2
Long-Term Debt, Excluding Current Maturities (Notes 7, 8 and 11) 3,678 19.3 3,736 232
Deferred Income Taxes (Note 13) 657 35 478 3.0
Other Long-Term Liabilities 30 0.2 15 0.1
Total Liabilities 8,733 45.9 7,807 48.5

Shareholders’ Equity (Note 10):
Preferred Stock — $5 Par Value, none issued - - - -
Common Stock — $.50 Par Value; ‘

Shares Issued and Outstanding

January 30,2004 787

January 31,2003 782 394 2.1 391 24
Capital in Excess of Par Value 2,237 117 2,023 12.6
Retained Earnings 7,677 40.3 5,887 36.5
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income 1 - 1 -
Total Shareholders’ Equity 10,309 54.1 8,302 51.5
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 19,042 100.0% $ 16,109 100.0%

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

Unearned Accumulated
Capital in Compensation- Other Total
Common Stock Excess of Retained Restricted Comprehensive Shareholders’
(In Millions) Shares Amount Par Value Earnings Stock Awards Income Equity
Balance February 2, 2001 766.5 $ 383 $ 1,595 $ 3,519 $ (2) $ 1 $ 5,496
Comprehensive Income:

Net Earnings 1,023
Total Comprehensive Income 1,023
Tax Effect of Non-qualified

Stock Options Exercised 35 35
Cash Dividends (60) (60)
Employee Stock Options Exercised (Note 10) 5.6 3 74 77
Stock Issued to ESOP (Notes 10 and 15) 1.9 1 62 63
Employee Stock Purchase Plan (Note 10) 1.7 1 37 38
Unearned Compensation —

Restricted Stock Awards (Notes 10 and 15) 2 2
Balance February 1, 2002 775.7 $ 388 $ 1,803 $ 4482 $ - $ 1 $ 6,674
Comprehensive Income:

Net Earnings 1,471
Total Comprehensive Income 1,471
Tax Effect of Non-qualified

Stock Options Exercised 29 29
Cash Dividends (66) (66)
Employee Stock Options Exercised (Note 10) 29 1 64 65
Stock Issued to ESOP (Notes 10 and 15) 1.9 1 78 79
Employee Stock Purchase Plan (Note 10) 14 1 49 50
Balance January 31, 2003 781.9 $ 391 $ 2,023 $ 5,887 $ - $ 1 $ 8302
Comprehensive Income:

Net Earnings 1,877
Total Comprehensive Income 1,877
Tax Effect of Non-qualified

Stock Options Exercised 27 27
Cash Dividends (87) (87)
Stock Compensation Expense (Notes 1 and 10) 41 41
Employee Stock Options Exercised (Note 10) 4.0 2 95 97
Employee Stock Purchase Plan {Note 10) 1.4 1 51 52
Balance January 30, 2004 787.3 $ 394 $ 2,237 $ 7,677 $ ~ $ 1 $ 10,309

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements,
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

{In Millions) January 30, January 31, February 1,
Years Ended On 2004 2003 2002
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Net Earnings $ 1,877 $ 1,471 $ 1,023
Earnings from Discontinued Operations, Net of Tax (15) (12) (13)
Earnings from Continuing Operations 1,862 1,459 1,010

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Earnings from Continuing
Operations to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Depreciation and Amortization 781 641 530
Deferred Income Taxes 178 208 42
Loss on Disposition/Writedown of Fixed and Other Assets 31 18 39
Stock-Based Compensation Expense 41 - -
Tax Effect of Stock Options Exercised 31 29 35
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
Accounts Receivable — Net 2 9) (5)
Merchandise Inventory (648) (357) (326)
Other Operating Assets (45) (41) (37)
Accounts Payable 423 228 1
Employee Retirement Plans (14) 40 114
Other Operating Liabilities 399 461 193
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities from Continuing Operations 3,041 2,677 1,596
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Decrease (Increase) in Investment Assets:

Short-Term Investments 139 (203) (30)
Purchases of Long-Term Investments (381) (24) (1)
Proceeds from Sale/Maturity of Long-Term Investments 193 - 3

Increase in Other Long-Term Assets (95) (33) (14)

Fixed Assets Acquired (2,444) (2,359) (2,196)

Proceeds from the Sale of Fixed and Other Long-Term Assets 45 44 42

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities from Continuing Operations (2,543) (2,575) (2,196)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Net Decrease in Short-Term Borrowings (50) (50) (150)

Long-Term Debt Borrowings - - 1,087

Repayment of Long-Term Debt (29) (63) (63)

Proceeds from Employee Stock Purchase Plan 52 50 38

Proceeds from Stock Options Exercised 97 65 77

Cash Dividend Payments (87) (66) (60)

Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Financing Activities from Continuing Operations (17) (64) 929

Net Cash Provided by Discontinued Operations 112 16 14
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 593 54 343
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 853 799 456
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 1,446 $ 853 $ 799

See accomparnying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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YEARS ENDED JANUARY 30,

2004, JANUARY 31, 2003 AND FEBRUARY 1,

Note 1| Summary of significant
accounting policies.

The Company is the world’s second largest home improvement
retailer and operated 952 stores in 45 states at January 30, 2004.
The following are those accounting policies considered to be
significant by the Company. '

Fiscal Year The Company’s fiscal year generally ends on the
Friday nearest the end of January. Each of the fiscal years presented
contains 52 weeks. All references herein for the years 2003, 2002 and
2001 represent the fiscal years ended January 30, 2004, January 31,
2003 and February 1, 2002, respectively.

Principles of Consolidation The consolidated financial state-
ments include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries, all
of which are wholly owned. All material intercompany accounts
and transactions have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates The preparation of the Company’s financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to
make estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses and related disclosures of contingent assets
and liabilities. The Company bases these estimates on historical
results and various other assumptions believed to be reasonable, the
results of which form the basis for making estimates concerning the
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily available
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash and cash equivalents include
cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with
original maturities of three months or less when purchased.

Investments The Company has a cash management program
which provides for the investment of cash balances not expected to
be used in current operations in financial instruments that have
maturities of up to 10 years. Investments, exclusive of cash equiva-
lents, with a maturity date of one year or less from the balance
sheet date or that are expected to be used in current operations, are
classified as short-term investments. All other investments are clas-
sified as long-term. Investments consist primarily of money
market preferred stocks, municipal obligations, agency bonds, cor-
porate notes and stocks and mutual funds.

The Company has classified all investment securities as avail-
able-for-sale, and they are carried at fair market value. Unrealized
gains and losses on such securities are included in accumulated
other comprehensive income in shareholders’ equity.

Derivative Financial Instruments The Company does not
use derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

Accounts Receivable The majority of accounts receivable arise
from sales to commercial business customers. The allowance for
doubtful accounts is based on historical experience and a review of
existing receivables. The allowance for doubtful accounts was $7
million at January 30, 2004 and January 31, 2003.

Sales generated through the Company’s private label credit
cards are not reflected in receivables. Under an agreement with
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General Electric Company and. its subsidiaries (GE), consumer
credit is extended directly to customers by GE. All credit program-
related services are performed and controlled directly by GE. The
Company has the option, but no obligation, at the end of the
agreement to purchase the receivables. The total portfolio of
receivables held by GE approximated $3.8 billion at January 30,
2004 and $3.3 billion at January 31, 2003.

Merchandise Inventory Inventory is stated at the lower of cost
or market using the first-in, first-out method of inventory
accounting. The cost of inventory also includes certain costs asso-
ciated with the preparation of inventory for resale,

The Company records an inventory reserve for the loss associated
with selling discontinued inventories below cost. This reserve is based
on management’s current knowledge with respect to inventory levels,
sales trends and historical experience relating to the liquidation of
discontinued inventory. Management does not believe the
Company’s merchandise inventories are subject to significant risk of
obsolescence in the near-term, and management has the ability to
adjust purchasing practices based on anticipated sales trends and
general economic conditions. However, changes in consumer pur-
chasing patterns could result in the need for additional reserves. The
Company also records an inventory reserve for the estimated shrink-
age between physical inventories. This reserve is based primarily on
actual shrink results from previous physical inventories. Changes in
actual shrink results from completed physical inventories could result
in revisions to previously estimated shrink expense. Management
believes it has sufficient current and historical knowledge to record
reasonable estimates for both of these inventory reserves.

Property and Depreciation Property is recorded at cost. Costs
associated with major additions are capitalized and depreciated.
Capital assets are expected to yield future benefits, have useful lives
which exceed one year and have minimum acquisition cost based
on the type of asset involved. The total cost of a capital asset gen-
erally includes all applicable sales taxes, delivery costs, installation
costs and other appropriate costs incurred by the Company in the
case of self-constructed assets. Upon disposal, the cost of proper-
ties and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the
accounts with gains and losses reflected in earnings.

Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the
depreciable assets. Assets are depreciated using the straight-line
method. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter
of their estimated useful lives or the term of the related lease.

Impairment/Store Closing Losses related to impairment of
long-lived assets are recognized when circumstances indicate the
carrying values of the assets may not be recoverable. The Company
periodically reviews the carrying value of long-lived assets for
potential impairment. When management commits to close or
relocate a store location, or when there are indicators that the car-
rying value of a long-lived asset may not be recoverable, the
Company evaluates the carrying value of the asset in relation to its
expected undiscounted future cash flows. If the carrying value of
the assets is greater than the expected undiscounted future cash
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a provision is made for the impairment of the assets based on the
excess of carrying value over fair value.

When a leased location is closed, a provision is made for the fair
value of future contractual obligations, including property taxes,
utilities, and common area maintenance, net of anticipated sub-
lease income. Provisions for impairment and store closing costs are
included in selling, general and administrative expenses (SG&A).

Leases Assets under capital leases are amortized in accordance
with the Company’s normal depreciation policy for owned assets or
over the lease term, if shorter, and the charge to earnings is includ-
ed in depreciation expense in the consolidated financial statements.

Self-Insurance The Company is self-insured for certain losses
relating to worker’s compensation, automobile, property, general
and product liability claims. The Company has stop loss coverage
to limit the exposure arising from these claims. Self-insurance
claims filed and claims incurred but not reported are accrued
based upon management’s estimates of the discounted aggregate
liability for uninsured claims incurred using actuarial assumptions
followed in the insurance industry and historical experience.
Although management believes it has the ability to adequately
record estimated losses related to claims, it is possible that actual
results could differ from recorded self-insurance liabilities.

Income Taxes Income taxes are provided for temporary dif-
ferences between the tax and financial accounting bases of assets
and liabilities using the asset and Liability method. The tax effects
of such differences are reflected in the balance sheet at the enacted
tax rates expected to be in effect when the differences reverse.

Store Opening Costs Costs of opening new or relocated retail
stores are charged to operations as incurred.

Revenue Recognition The Company recognizes revenues
when sales transactions occur and customers take possession of the
merchandise. A provision for anticipated merchandise returns is
provided in the period that the related sales are recorded.

Revenues from product installation services are recognized
when the installation is completed. Revenues from gift cards are
deferred and recognized when the cards are redeemed.

Advertising Costs associated with advertising are charged to
operations as incurred. Gross advertising expenses were $682 mil-
lion, $608 million and $519 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respec-
tively. Cooperative advertising vendor funds of $673 million, $583
million and $481 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively were
recorded as a reduction of these expenses with the net amount
included in SG&A.

Vendor Funds The Company receives funds from vendors in
the normal course of business for a variety of reasons including
purchase-volume-related rebates, defective merchandise allowances,
cooperative advertising allowances, reimbursement for selling
expenses, displays and third-party, in-store service related costs.
The Company has historically treated volume-related discounts or
rebates as a reduction of inventory cost and reimbursements of
operating expenses received from vendors as a reduction of those
specific expenses. The Company’s historical accounting treatment
for these vendor provided funds is consistent with Emerging Issues
Task Force (EITF) 02-16 with the exception of certain cooperative
advertising allowances and in-store services provided by third

partes 10r which tn€ costs are ultimately mundaed Dy vendors.
The Company previously treated the cooperative advertising
allowances and in-store service funds as a reduction of the related
expense. Under EITF 02-16, cooperative advertising allowances
and in-store service funds should be treated as a reduction of
inventory cost, unless they represent a reimbursement of specific,
incremental and identifiable costs incurred by the customer to sell
the vendor’s product. ‘

The cooperative advertising agreements with the Company’s
vendors provide funds for general Company advertising to drive
customer traffic, which in turn, increases sales of the vendors’
products. These funds did not meet the specific, incremental and
identifiable criteria in EITF 02-16. Therefore, for cooperative
advertising agreements entered into after December 31, 2002, the
Company is treating cooperative advertising funds as a reduction
in the cost of inventory and recognizing these funds as a reduction
of cost of sales when the inventory is sold.

The third-party, in-store service fund agreements with the
Company’s vendors provide funds for third parties to provide gen-
eral merchandising functions within the Company’s stores. Third-
party vendors providing these functions service multiple areas and
products within the Company’s retail stores. Neither the Company
nor the third-party service providers have the ability to specifically
identify time spent on a merchandise vendor’s products in multiple
locations and match them to specific funds from merchandise ven-
dors. As such, these funds did not meet the specific, incremental
and identifiable criteria in EITF 02-16. Therefore, for third-party,
in-store service fund agreements entered into after December 31,
2002, the Company is treating third-party, in-store service funds as
a reduction in the cost of inventory and recognizing these funds as
a reduction of cost of sales when the inventory is sold. Third-party,
in-store service costs are included in SG&A and are presented net of
third-party, in-store service vendor funds of $175 million, $69 mil-
lion and $30 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

This accounting change did not have a material impact on the
2003 financial statements since substantially all of the cooperative
advertising allowance and in-store service fund agreements for
2003 were entered into prior to December 31, 2002, the effective
date of the related provision of EITF 02-16.

Stock-Based Comipensation Prior to 2003, the Company
accounted for its stock-based compensation plans under the recog-
nition and measurement provisions of Accounting Principles
Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees,” and related Interpretations. Therefore, no stock-based
employee compensation is reflected in 2002 or 2001 net income,
other than for restricted stock grants, as all options granted under
those plans had an exercise price equal to the market value of the
underlying common stock on the date of grant.

Effective February 1, 2003, the Company adopted the fair value
recognition provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,” prospectively for all employee awards granted or
modified after January 31, 2003. Therefore, in accordance with the
requirements of SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation-Transition and Disclosure,” the cost related to stock-
based employee compensation included in the determination of net
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have been recognized if the fair value based method had been
applied to all awards since the original effective date of SFAS No. 123.
The Company recognized compensation expense in 2003 totaling
$41 million for stock options and awards granted or modified dur-
ing the year. These options generally vest over three years.

The following table illustrates the effect on net earnings and
earnings per share if the fair-value-based method had been applied
to all outstanding and unvested awards in each period:

(In Millions, Except Per Share Data) 2003 2002 2001
$ 1,877 § 1471 § 1,023

Net Earnings as Reported

Deduct: Total Unrecognized Stock-Based
Employee Compensation Expense Determined
Under the Fair-Value-Based Method for All
Awards Net of Related Tax Effects (61) (85) (55)

Pro Forma Net Earnings $ 1,816 $ 1,386 $ 968

Earnings Per Share:

Basic — as Reported $§ 239 ¢ 189 § 133
Basic — Pro Forma $ 231 $ 178 § 1.25
Diluted - as Reported $ 234 $§ 185 $ 130
Diluted ~ Pro Forma $ 227 $ 173 $ 122

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of
grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the
assumptions listed below.

2003 2002 2001

Weighted Average Fair Value Per Option  $17.64  $19.22  $17.39
Assumptions Used:

Weighted Average Expected Volatility 44.0% 43.7% 41.1%

Weighted Average Expected Dividend Yield 0.26% 0.27% 0.23%

Weighted Average Risk-Free Interest Rate  2.89% 4.35% 4.58%

Weighted Average Expected Life, in Years 5.5 4.0-7.0 7.0

Shipping and Handling Costs The Company includes ship-
ping and handling costs relating to the shipment of products to
customers by third parties in cost of sales. Shipping and handling
costs, which include salaries and vehicle operations expenses relat-
ing to the delivery of products to customers by the Company are
classified as SG&A. Shipping and handling costs included in SG&A
were $216 million, $193 million, and $163 million during 2003,
2002, and 2001, respectively.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements In January 2003, the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued
Interpretation 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an
Interpretation of ARB No. 51”7 (FIN 46). In December 2003, the
FASB issued a revision to FIN 46 to make certain technical correc-
tions and address certain implementation issues that had arisen.
FIN 46 provides guidance on the identification and consolidation
of variable interest entities, or VIEs, which are entities for which
control is achieved through means other than through voting
rights. The provisions of FIN 46 are required to be applied to VIEs
created or in which the Company obtains an interest after January 31,
2003. For VIEs in which the Company holds a variable interest that
it acquired before February 1, 2003, the provisions of FIN 46 are
effective for the first quarter of 2004. Due to the ongoing delibera-
tions and clarifications by the FASB, we are still assessing the pro-
visions of FIN 46. However, the Company does not expect the
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impact on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, “Amendment of
Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.”
SFAS No. 149 amends and dlarifies accounting for derivative
instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded
in other contracts, and for hedging activities under Statement 133.
This Statement is effective for contracts entered into or modified
after June 30, 2003, except in certain instances stated within SFAS
No. 149 and for hedging relationships designated after June 30,
2003. The initial adoption of this standard did not have a material
impact on the Company’s financial statements.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for
Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both
Liabilities and Equity” SFAS No. 150 changes the accounting for cer-
tain financial instruments that, under previous guidance, issuers
could account for as equity. The new Statement requires that those
instruments be classified as liabilities in statements of financial posi-
tion. This Statement is effective for financial instruments entered
into or modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective at the
beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003,
except for mandatorily redeemable financial instruments of non
public entities. The initial adoption of this standard did not have a
material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Reclassifications Certain prior period amounts have been
reclassified to conform to current classifications.

Note 2 | Discontinued operations.

During the fourth quarter of 2003, the Company sold 26 commodity-
focused locations operating under The Contractor Yard name (the
“Contractor Yards”). This sale was effected to allow the Company to
continue to focus on its retail and commercial business. The
Company has reported the results of operations of the Contractor
Yards as discontinued operations for 2003, 2002 and 2001. Total net
assets included in the disposal group and sold as of January 30, 2004
were approximately $111 million, and consisted primarily of $47 mil-
lion in net accounts receivable, $37 million in merchandise inventory
and $27 million in property, less accumulated depreciation.

The results of operations of the Contractor Yards included in
discontinued operations were as follows:

Years Ended On
January 30, January 31, Februaryl,
(In Millions) 2004 2003 2002
Net Sales from Discontinued Operations $425 $379 $397
Pre-Tax Earnings from Discontinued Operations 20 20 21
Gain on Sale of Contractor Yards 5 - -
Income Tax Provision 10

Earnings from Discontinued Operations,
Net of Tax $ 15 $ 12 $ 13

Note 3 | Investments.
The Company’s investment securities are classified as available-
for-sale. The amortized cost, gross unrealized holding gains and
losses and fair values of the investments at January 30, 2004 and
January 31, 2003 were as follows:
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Gross Gross

(In Millions) Amortized  Unrealized  Unrealized Fair
Type Cost Gains Losses Value
Municipal Obligations $ 160 $- $-~ $ 160
Money Market Preferred Stock 18 - ~ 18

Classified as Short-Term 178 - -~ 178
Municipal Obligations 92 - - 92
Corporate Notes 32 - ~ 32
Agency Bonds 23 - - 23
Asset-Backed Obligations 16 - - 16
Mutual Funds 6 - - 6

Classified as Long-Term 169 - - 169
Total $ 347 $- $- $ 347

January 31, 2003

Gross Gross

(In Millions) Amortized  Unrealized  Unrealized Fair
Type Cost Gains Losses Value
Municipal Obligations $ 82 $~ $- $ 82
Money Market Preferred Stock 186 ~ - 186
Corporate Notes 5 ~ - 5

Classified as Short-Term 273 ~ - 273
Municipal Obligations 11 ~ - 11
Agency Bonds 17 - - 17
Mutual Funds 1 - - 1

Classified as Long-Term 29 - - 29
Total $ 302 $- $— $302

The unrealized net gain on available-for-sale securities was $159
thousand, net of the tax expense of $58 thousand at January 30, 2004.
The unrealized net loss on available-for-sale securities was $285 thou-
sand, net of the tax benefit of $172 thousand at January 31, 2003.

The proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities were
$204 million, $2 million and $1 million for 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. Gross realized gains and losses on the sale of available-
for-sale securities were not significant for any of the periods pre-
sented. The municipal obligations and agency bonds classified as
long-term at January 30, 2004 will mature in one to five years.

Note 4 | Property and
accumulated depreciation.

Property is summarized by major class in the following table:

January 30, January 31,
(In Millions) 2004 2003
Cost:
Land $ 3,635 $ 3,133
Buildings 5,950 5,092
Equipment 4,355 3,663
Leasehold Improvements 1,133 929
Total Cost 15,073 12,817
Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization (3,128) (2,465)
Net Property $11,945 $10,352

The estimated depreciable lives, in years, of the Company’s prop-
erty are: buildings, 20 to 40; store, distribution and office equipment,
3 to 10; leasehold improvements, generally the life of the related lease.

Included in net property are assets under capital lease of $539
million, less accumulated depreciation of $108 million at January 30,
2004, and $543 million, less accumulated depreciation of $93 mil-
lion at January 31, 2003.

INOte O | imipairment ana

store closing costs.

The Company periodically reviews the carrying value of long-lived
assets for potential impairment. When management commits to
close or relocate a store location, or when there are indicators that
the carrying value of a long-lived asset may not be recoverable, the
Company evaluates the carrying value of the asset in relation to its
expected future cash flows. If the carrying value of the assets is
greater than the expected future cash flows and the fair value of the
assets is less than the carrying value, a provision is made for the
impairment of the assets based on the excess of carrying value over
fair value. The fair value of the assets is generally based on internal
or external appraisals and the Company’s historical experience.
The provision for impairment is included in SG&A.

Closed store real estate is included in other assets and amounted
to $89 million and $94 million at January 30, 2004 and January 31,
2003, respectively.

When leased locations are closed, a liability is recognized for the
fair value of future contractual obligations, including property taxes,
utilities and common area maintenance, net of anticipated sublease
income. The provision for store closing costs is included in SG&A.

The following table illustrates the store closing liability and the
respective changes in the obligation, which is included in other
current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet.

(In Millions) Store Closing Liability

Balance at February 2, 2001 $19
Accrual for Store Closing Costs 6
Lease Payments, Net of Sublease Income (8)

Balance at February 1, 2002 $17
Accrual for Store Closing Costs 9
Lease Payments, Net of Sublease Income (10)

Balance at January 31, 2003 $16
Accrual for Store Closing Costs 12
Lease Payments, Net of Sublease Income 9)

Balance at January 30, 2004 $ 19

Note 6 | Short-term borrowings

and lines of credit.

The Company has an $800 million senior credit facility. The facili-
ty is split into a $400 million five-year tranche, expiring in August
2006 and a $400 million 365-day tranche, expiring in July 2004,
which is renewable annually. The facility is used to support the
Company’s $800 million commercial paper program and for short-
term borrowings. Borrowings made are priced based upon market
conditions at the time of funding in accordance with the terms of
the senior credit facility. The senior credit facility contains certain
restrictive covenants, which include maintenance of a specific
financial ratio. The Company was in compliance with those
covenants at January 30, 2004. Fifteen banking institutions are par-
ticipating in the $800 million senior credit facility and, as of January
30, 2004, there were no outstanding loans under the facility.

In July 2003, the Company terminated a $100 million revolving
credit and security agreement with a financial institution which was
scheduled to expire in November 2003. The remaining outstanding
balance of $50 million was repaid at the time of termination.
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lion for the purpose of issuing documentary letters of credit and
standby letters of credit. These lines do not have termination dates
but are reviewed periodically. Commitment fees ranging from
.25% to .50% per annum are paid on the amounts of standby let-
ters of credit. Outstanding letters of credit totaled $161 million as
of January 30, 2004 and $122 million as of January 31, 2003,

At January 31, 2003, the interest rate on short-term borrowings
was 1.4%. There were no short-term borrowings outstanding at
January 30, 2004.

Note 7 | Long-term debt.

Fiscal Year
(In Millions) of Final  January30, January 31,
Debt Category Interest Rates Maturity 2004 2003
Secured Debt:!
Mortgage Notes 7.00% to 9.25% 2028 $ 45 $ 55
Unsecured Debt:
Debentures 6.50% to 6.88% 2029 692 692
Notes 7.50% to 8.25% 2010 996 995
Medium-Term Notes

Series A 7.35% 10 8.20% 2023 74 74
Medium-Term Notes?

Series B 6.70%to 7.61% 2037 267 266
Senior Notes 6.38% 2005 100 100
Convertible Notes 0.9%to 2.5% 2021 1,136 1,119
Capital Leases 6.58% to 19.57% 2029 445 464
Total Long-Term Debt 3,755 3,765
Less Current Maturities 77 29

Long-Term Debt, Excluding
Current Maturities $3,678 $3,736

1Real properties with an aggregate book value of $86 million were pledged as
collateral at January 30, 2004 for secured debt.

2Approximately 37% of these Medium-Term Notes may be put at the option of the
holder on either the tenth or twentieth anniversary date of the issuge at par value. None
of these notes are currently putable.

Debt maturities, exclusive of capital leases, for the next five fis-
cal years and thereafter are as follows: 2004, $54 million; 2005, $608
million; 2006, $8 million; 2007, $61 million; 2008, $6 million;
thereafter, $3,036 million.

The Company’s debentures, senior notes, medium-term notes
and convertible notes contain certain restrictive covenants, includ-
ing maintenance of a specific financial ratio. The Company was in
compliance with all covenants in these agreements at January 30,
2004 and January 31, 2003.

In October 2001, the Company issued $580.7 million aggregate
principal of senior convertible notes at an issue price of $861.03 per
note. Interest on the notes, at the rate of 0.8610% per year on the prin-
cipal amount at maturity, is payable semiannually in arrears until
October 2006. After that date, the Company will not pay cash interest
on the notes prior to maturity. Instead, in October 2021 when the
notes mature, a holder will receive $1,000 per note, representing a yield
to maturity of approximately 1%. Holders may convert their notes
into 17.212 shares of the Company’s common stock, subject to adjust-
ment, only if: the sale price of the Company’s common stock reaches
specified thresholds, the credit rating of the notes is below a specified
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actions have occurred. Holders may require the Company to purchase
all or a portion of their note in October 2006, at a price of $861.03 per
note plus accrued cash interest, if any, or in October 2011, at a price of
$905.06 per note. The Company may choose to pay the purchase price
of the notes in cash or common stock or a combination of cash and
common stock. In addition, if a change in control of the Company
occurs on or before October 2006, each holder may require the
Company to purchase for cash all or a portion of such holder’s notes.
The Company may redeem for cash all or a portion of the notes at any
time beginning October 2006, at a price equal to the sum of the issue
price plus accrued original issue discount and accrued cash interest, if
any, on the redemption date. The conditions that permit conversion
were not satisfied at January 30, 2004.

In February 2001, the Company issued $1.005 billion aggregate
principal of convertible notes at an issue price of $608.41 per note.
Interest will not be paid on the notes prior to maturity in Febroary
2021, at which time the holders will receive $1,000 per note, repre-
senting a yield to maturity of 2.5%. Holders may convert their notes
at any time on or before the maturity date, unless the notes have been
previously purchased or redeemed, into 16.448 shares of the
Company’s common stock per note. Holders of the notes may
require the Company to purchase all or a portion of their notes in
February 2004 at a price of $655.49 per note or in February 2011 ata
price of $780.01 per note. On either of these dates, the Company may
choose to pay the purchase price of the notes in cash or common
stock, or a combination of cash and common stock. In addition, if a
change in control of the Company occurs on or before February
2004, each holder may require the Company to purchase, for cash, all
or a portion of the holder’s notes. Holders of an insignificant num-
ber of notes exercised their right to require the Company to purchase
their notes in February 2004, all of which were purchased in cash.

Note 8 | Financial instruments.

Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, short-term bor-
rowings, trade accounts payable and accrued liabilities are reflect-
ed in the financial statements at cost which approximates fair
value. Short and long-term investments, classified as available-for-
sale securities, are reflected in the financial statements at fair value.
Estimated fair values for long-term debt have been determined
using available market information and appropriate valuation
methodologies. However, considerable judgment is required in
interpreting market data to develop the estimates of fair value.
Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily
indicative of the amounts that the Company could realize in a cur-
rent market exchange. The use of different market assumptions
and/or estimation methodologies may have a material effect on the
estimated fair value amounts. The fair value of the Company’s
long-term debt excluding capital leases is as follows:

January 30, 2004 January 31, 2003

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
(In Millions) Amount Value Amount Value
Liabilities:
Long-Term Debt
{Excluding Capital Leases) $ 3,310 $ 3,985 $ 3,302 $ 3,747




Interest rates that are currently available to the Company for
issuance of debt with similar terms and remaining maturities are
used to estimate fair value for debt issues that are not quoted on
an exchange.

Note 9 | Earnings per share.

Basic earnings per share (EPS) excludes dilution and is computed
by dividing the applicable net earnings by the weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted
earnings per share is calculated based on the weighted-average
shares of common stock as adjusted for the potential dilutive effect
of stock options and applicable convertible notes as of the balance
sheet date. The effect of the assumed conversion of the $580.7 mil-
lion Senior Convertible Notes, issued in October 2001, has been
excluded from diluted earnings per share for the years ended
January 30, 2004, January 31, 2003 and February 1, 2002, because
none of the conditions that would permit conversion had been sat-
isfied during the period (see Note 7). Following is the reconcilia-
tion of EPS for 2003, 2002 and 2001.

(In Millions, Except Per Share Data) 2003 2002 2001
Basic Earnings per Share:

Earnings from Continuing

Operations $ 1,862 $ 1,459 S 1,010
Earnings from Discontinued

Operations, Net of Tax 15 12 13
Net Earnings $ 1,877 $ 1,471 $ 1,023
Weighted Average Shares

Outstanding 785 779 772
Basic Earnings per Share:

Continuing Operations $ 237 $  1.87 $ 131
Basic Earnings per Share:

Discontinued Operations 0.02 0.02 0.02
Basic Earnings per Share $ 239 $ 189 $ 133
Diluted Earnings per Share:

Net Earnings $ 1,877 $ 1,471 $ 1,023

Net Earnings Adjustment for
[nterest on Convertible Debt

Net of Tax 10 11 10
Net Earnings, as Adjusted $ 1,887 $ 1,482 $ 1,033
Weighted Average Shares

Outstanding 785 779 772
Dilutive Effect of Stock Options 4 4 7
Dilutive Effect of Convertible Debt 17 17 16
Weighted Average Shares,

as Adjusted 806 800 795
Diluted Earnings per Share:

Continuing Operations $ 232 $§ 183 $ 128
Diluted Earnings per Share:

Discontinued Operations 0.02 0.02 0.02
Diluted Earnings per Share $ 234 $ 1.85 $ 130

Note 10 | Snhareholders” equity.
Authorized shares of common stock were 2.8 billion at January 30,
2004 and January 31, 2003.

The Company has five million authorized shares of preferred
stock ($5 par), none of which have been issued. The Board of
Directors may issue the preferred stock without action by share-
holders in one or more series, having such voting rights, dividend
and liquidation preferences and such conversion and other rights as
may be designated by the Board of Directors at the time of issuance.

As of January 30, 2004, the Company had a shareholder rights
plan, which provided for a distribution of 0.5 preferred share pur-
chase rights on each outstanding share of common stock. Purchase
rights would become distributable and exercisable only if a person
or group acquired or commenced a tender offer for 15% or more
of the Company’s common stock. Once exercisable, each 0.5 pur-
chase right would entitle shareholders (other than the acquiring
person or group) to buy one unit of a series of preferred stock for
$76.25; the price of the unit to the acquiring person or group in
such event would be $152.50. Each unit was intended to be the
economic equivalent of one share of common stock, and the plan
was adopted to act as a deterrent to unsolicited offers to acquire
control of the Company. The rights would expire in 2008, unless
the Company redeemed or exchanged them earlier. In April 2004,
the Board of Directors authorized the termination of its share-
holder rights plan and the related redemption of all purchase rights
under this plan. These rights will be redeemed for one-twentieth of
a cent ($0.0005) per share, or approximately $400 thousand.

In December 2003, the Board of Directors approved a share
repurchase program of up to $1 billion through 2005. This pro-
gram is intended to be implemented through purchases made
from time to time either in the open market or through private
transactions. Shares purchased under the share repurchase pro-
gram will be retired and returned to unissued status. As no shares
had been repurchased as of January 30, 2004, the share repurchase
program had a remaining authorized balance of $1 billion for
future common stock repurchases.

The Company granted restricted stock awards of 550,000 shares
with a per share weighted-average fair value of $39.30 in 2003. No
restricted stock awards were granted in 2002 or 2001. Restricted
stock awards of 20,000 and 1,741,400 shares, with per share
weighted-average fair values of $17.57, and $12.40, were granted to
certain executives in 1998 and 1997, respectively. Related expenses
(charged to compensation expense) for 2003, 2002 and 2001 were
$5 million, $0 million, and $2 million, respectively.

The Company has three stock incentive plans, referred to as the
“2001%, “1997” and “1994” Incentive Plans, under which incentive
and non-qualified stock options may be granted to key employees.
No awards may be granted after 2011 under the 2001 plan, after
2007 under the 1997 plan and after 2004 under the 1994 plan.
Stock options generally have terms of seven years, normally vest
evenly over three years, and are assigned an exercise price of not
less than the fair market value on the date of grant. At January 30,
2004, there were 18,170,634, 2,246,803 and 154,755 shares avail-
able for grants under the 2001, 1997 and 1994 plans, respectively.
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Incentive Plans is summarized as follows: Plan is summarized as follows:
Key Employee Stock Option Plans Directors’ Stock Option Plans
Shares Weighted-Average Shares Weighted-Average
(In Thousands) Exercise Price Per Share (In Thousands) Exercise Price Per Share
Outstanding at February 2, 2001 15,508 $19.43 Outstanding at February 2, 2001 60 $24.27
Granted 10,866 34.17 Granted 40 3591
Canceled or Expired (1,611) 25.50 Outstanding at February 1, 2002 100 $28.92
Exercised (5,622) 14.99 Granted 40 47.16
Qutstanding at February 1, 2002 19,141 $28.77 Exercised (4) 25.85
Granted 5,537 43.65 Outstanding at January 31, 2003 136 $34.38
Canceled or Expired (1,085) 34.28 Granted 36 42.26
Exercised (2,942) 22.20 Exercised (25) 28.74
Outstanding at January 31, 2003 20,651 $33.37 Canceled or Expired (12) 43.03
Granted 4,868 40.27 Outstanding at January 30, 2004 135 $36.77
Canceled or Expired (1,129) 39.66 Exercisable at January 30, 2004 71 $31.28
Exercised (3,745) 26.20 Exercisable at January 31, 2003 59 $27.06
Outstanding at January 30, 2004 20,645 $35,78 Exercisable at February 1, 2002 29 $24.77
Exercisable at January 30, 2004 7,525 $27.58
Exercisable at January 31, 2003 7,770 $23.75 During 2000, the Company established a qualified Employee
Exercisable at February 1, 2002 6,707 $21.67 Stock Purchase Plan that allows eligible employees to participate in
‘ . the purchase of designated shares of the Company’s common
Outstanding Exercisable stock. Ten million shares were authorized for this plan with
Range of We;\i}el:; wii}:;::; Wiil;:z; 4,653,731 remaining available at January 30, 2004. The purchase
Exercise Options Remaining  Exercise Options  Exercise price of this stock is equal to 85% of the lower of the closing price
Prices (In Thousards) Term Price  (InThousands)  Price at the beginning or the end of each semi-annual stock purchase
§5.18-8 752 2 16§ 592 728 59 period. The Company issued 1,441,518, 1,341,241, and 1,688,966
8.70- 12,60 21 2.4 11.16 21 1L16 . .
1319  19.44 187 36 1492 187 1492 shares of common stock pursuant to this plan during 2003, 2002,
3134 3116 7701 6.4 25.49 5046 2490 and 2001, respectively. As noted in Note 1, effective February 1,
32.04- 47.00 12,663 83 42.55 1299 43.15 2003, the Company adopted the fair-value recognition provisions
$38.93 1 9.8 58.93 - - of SFAS No. 123 for all employee awards granted or modified after
Totals 20,645 75  $3578 7,525 $27.58 January 31, 2003. As a result, during 2003, the Company recog-

In 1999, the Company’s shareholders approved the Lowe’s
Companies, Inc. Directors’ Stock Option Plan, which replaced the
Directors’ Stock Incentive Plan that expired on May 29, 1998.
During the term of the Plan, each non-employee Director will be
awarded 4,000 options on the date of the first board meeting after
each annual meeting of the Company’s shareholders (the award
date). The maximum number of shares available for grant under
the Plan is 500,000, subject to adjustment. No awards may be
granted under the Plan after the award date in 2008. The options
vest evenly over three vears, expire after seven years and are
assigned a price equal to the fair market value of the Company’s
common stock on the date of grant.
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nized compensation expense totaling $13 million relating to stock
issued under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan during that period,
which is included in the $41 million in compensation expense rec-
ognized in 2003. No compensation expense was recorded in 2002
or 2001 related to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as the Plan
qualified as non-compensatory under the intrinsic value method
of accounting.

The Company reports comprehensive income in its consolidat-
ed statement of shareholders’ equity. Comprehensive income rep-
resents changes in shareholders’ equity from non-owner sources.
For the three years ended January 30, 2004, unrealized holding
gains/losses on available-for-sale securities were the only items of
other comprehensive income for the Company and were immate-
rial. The reclassification adjustments for gains/losses included in
net earnings for 2003, 2002, and 2001 were also immaterial.




Note 11 | Leases.

The Company leases certain store facilities under agreements with
original terms generally of 20 years. Certain lease agreements con-
tain rent escalation clauses that are charged to rent expense on a
straight-line basis. Some agreements also provide for contingent
rental based on sales performance in excess of specified mini-
mums. In 2003, 2002 and 2001, contingent rentals have been nom-
inal. The leases usually contain provisions for four renewal options
of five years each. Certain equipment is also leased by the
Company under agreements ranging from two to five years. These
agreements typically contain renewal options providing for a re-
negotiation of the lease, at the Company’s option, based on the fair
market value at that time.

The future minimum rental payments required under capital
and operating leases having initial or remaining non-cancelable
lease terms in excess of one year are summarized as follows:

(In Millions) Operating Leases Capital Leases
Fiscal Year Real Estate  Equipment Real Estate  Equipment Total
2004 $ 224 $1 $ 58 $2 $ 285
2005 220 1 59 1 281
2006 217 - 59 1 277
2007 217 - 59 1 277
2008 215 - 58 - 273
Later Years 2,125 - 472 - 2,597
Total Minimum

Lease Payments $3,218 $2 $765 $5 $3,990
Total Minimum Capital Lease Payments $770
Less Amount

Representing Interest 325
Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments 445
Less Current Maturities 23

Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments,
Less Current Maturities $422

Rental expenses under operating leases for real estate and
equipment were $233 million, $215 million and $188 million in
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

In fiscal 2002, the Company exercised its purchase option to
acquire all properties leased under certain operating lease agree-
ments for $261.5 million, which approximated the assets’ original
cost. The Company had three operating lease agreements whereby
lessors committed to purchase land, fund construction costs and
lease properties to the Company. The Company had financed four
regional distribution centers and 14 retail stores through these
lease agreements. Upon repurchase of these properties, the three
operating leases were terminated.

Note 12 | Employee retirement plans.
Effective September 2002, the Employee Stock Ownership Plan
(ESOP) was merged into the Lowe’s Companies 401(k) Plan (the
401(k) Plan or the Plan). There will be no further contributions
made to participants’ ESOP accounts under the 401(k) Plan. All
participants in the ESOP had their balances transferred into a sep-
arately tracked account under the 401(k) Plan on the merger date.
The merger gave ESOP participants more control and flexibility
over their retirement savings by allowing them to diversify their
ESOP account balance over a wider range of investment choices
available under the 401(k) Plan. At the time of the merger, ESOP
shares were vested 100%. There were no ESOP expenses for 2003
and 2002. ESOP expenses for 2001 were $119 million.

As a result of merging the ESOP into the 401(k) Plan, the
Company increased its contribution to the 401(k) Plan to include
two types of contributions. The Company continues to make the
traditional contribution each payroll period based upon a match-
ing formula applied to employee contributions. In addition,
beginning in 2002, the Company offers a performance match to
eligible 401 (k) participants based on growth of net earnings before
taxes for the fiscal year. 401(k) Plan participants must have three or
more years of employment service and be actively employed on the
last day of the fiscal year to be eligible for the performance match.
The performance match will be funded in participant accounts in
April of the following year. Employees are eligible to participate in
the 401(k) Plan after completing 90 days of continuous service.
The Company’s contributions to the 401(k) Plan vest immediately
in the participant accounts. Participants are allowed to choose
from a group of mutual funds in order to designate how both
employer and employee contributions are to be invested. The
Company’s common stock is also one of the investment options
for contributions to the Plan. Company shares held on the partic-
ipant’s behalf by the Plan are voted by the participants. Once par-
ticipants reach age 59 1/2, they may elect to withdraw their entire
401(k) Plan balance. This is a one-time, in-service distribution
option. Participants may also withdraw contributions and rollover
contributions while still actively employed for reasons of hardship.
In addition, participants with 20 or more years of service, who
have an ESOP carryforward account balance within the 401(k)
Plan, can elect to receive a one-time in service distribution of 50%
of this account balance. Company contributions to the 401(k) Plan
for 2003, 2002 and 2001 were $83 million, $115 million and $15
million, respectively.

The Company originally adopted a Benefit Restoration Plan
(BRP) on February 1, 1990. This plan was amended and restated
effective as of August 3, 2002. The BRP is unfunded and designed to
provide benefits in addition to those provided under the 401(k)
Plan to 401(k) Plan participants whose benefits are restricted as a
result of certain provisions of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC) of
1986. The Company’s contribution to the BRP totaled $4 million,
$2 million and $0 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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The following is a reconciliation of the effective tax rate to the The Company is a defendant in legal proceedings considered to
federal statutory tax rate for continuing operations. be in the normal course of business, none of which, singularly or
2003 2002 2001 collectively, are believed to have a risk of having a material impact
Statutory Federal Income Tax Rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0% on the Company’s financial statements.
State Income Taxes—Net of Federal
Tax Benefit 3.1 33 3.0
Stock Compensation Expense 0.2 0.0 0.0 Note 1 S 1 Other ZI’ZfOT’matlon.
Other, Net (0.4) (0.7) (1.0) Net interest expense is comprised of the following:
Effective Tax Rate 37.9% 37.6% 37.0% (In Milliors) 2003 2002 2001
it Compr ot TR CongTerm B e
Current Mortgage Interest 5 5 8
Federal $ 833 $ 590 s 485 Capitalized Leases 40 40 41
State 124 82 67 Short-Term Debt - 1 4
Total Carrent 957 672 552 Amortization of Original Issue
Deferred Discount and Loan Costs 19 19 18
Federal 161 172 34 Interest Income (15) (21) (24)
State 18 36 7 Interest Capitalized (26) (25) (34)
Total Deferred 179 208 41 Net Interest Expense $180 $182 $174
Total Income Tax Provision $1,136 $ 880 $ 593
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
The tax effect of cumulative temporary differences that gave (In Millions) 2003 2002 2001
rise to the deferred tax assets and liabilities at fanuary 30, 2004 and Cash Paid for Interest
]anuary 31, 2003 is as follows: (Net of Amount Capitalized) $ 179 $ 186 $ 178
January 30,2004 Cash Paid for Income Taxes $ 926 $ 695 $ 532
(In Millions) Assets Liabilities Total Noncash Investing and Financing Activities:
Excess Property and Fixed Assets Acquired under
Store Closing Costs $ 22 s - $ 22 Capital Leases $ 3 $ 16 $ 13
Self-Insurance 30 - 30 Common Stock Issued to ESOP (Note 12) - 79 63
Depreciation - (674) (674) Common Stock [ssued to Executives and
Vacation Accrual 5 - 5 Directors, net of Unearned Compensation - - 2
Allowance for Sales Returns 32 - 32 Notes Received in Exchange for Sale
Other, Net 18 (31) (13) of Real Estate $ - $ 4 $ 4
Total $ 107 $ (705) $ (598)
January 31, 2003
(In Millions) Assets Liabilities Total
Excess Property and
Store Closing Costs $ 24 $ - $ 24
Self-Insurance 58 - 58
Depreciation - (498) (498)
Vacation Accrual 5 - 5
Allowance for Sales Returns 26 - 26
Other, Net 6 (41) (35)
Total $ 119 $ (539) $ (420)
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Lowes Lompanies, inc.
Quarterly Review of Performance (Unaudited)

Earnings Statements
(In Millions, Except Per Share Data)
Fiscal 2003 Fiscal 2002
Quarter Ended ' 1/30/04 10/31/03 8/1/03 5/2/03 1/31/03 11/1/02 8/2/02 5/3/02
Net Sales $ 7,252 $ 7,802 $ 8,666 $ 7,118 $ 6,037 $ 6,317 $ 7,385 $ 6,373
Gross Margin 2,321 2,441 2,626 2,219 1,918 1,945 2,182 1,903
Expenses:
SG&A 1,378 1,450 1,416 1,299 1,151 1,178 1,219 1,128
Store Opening Costs 45 37 27 19 40 28 24 37
Depreciation 203 192 184 179 168 158 152 144
Interest 45 42 45 48 45 44 46 47
Total Expenses 1,671 1,721 1,672 1,545 1,404 1,408 1,441 1,356
Pre-Tax Earnings 650 720 954 674 514 537 741 547
Income Tax Provision 249 272 360 255 197 201 277 205
Earnings From .
Continuing Operations 401 448 594 419 317 336 464 342
Earnings From Discontinued
Operations, Net of Tax 6 4 3 2 2 3 3 4
Net Earnings $ 407 $ 452 $ 597 $ 41 $ 319 $ 339 $ 467 $ 346
Basic Earnings Per Share $ 052 $ 058 $ 076 $ 054 $ 041 $ 044 $ 0.60 $ 045
Diluted Earnings Per Share $ 051 $ 056 $ 075 $ 053 $ 0.40 $ 043 $ 0.9 $ 0.44
Earnings Statement Changes
Changes from same quarter previous year, to nearest tenth percent
Fiscal 2003 Fiscal 2002
Quarter Ended 1/30/04 10/31/03 8/1/03 5/2/03 1/31/03 11/1/02 8/2/02 5/3/02
Net Sales 20.1% 23.5% 17.3% 11.7% 16.8% 18.1% 22.8% 23.0%
Gross Margin 21.0 25.5 20.3 16.6 24,0 23.9 28.7 29.0
Expenses:
SG&A 19.7 23.1 16.2 15.2 16.4 23.0 23.8 21.8
Store Opening Costs 12,5 32.1 12.5 (48.6) 21.2 (34.9) (14.3) 2.8
Depreciation 20.8 215 21.1 243 217 18.8 226 22.0
Interest 0.0 (4.5) (2.2} 2.1 (4.3) 2.3 7.0 14.6
Total Expenses 19.0 22.2 16.0 13.9 16.3 19.6 22,1 21.0
Pre-Tax Earnings 26.5 34.1 28.7 23.2 5L2 36.6 43.6 54.5
Income Tax Provision 26.4 35.3 30.0 24.4 56.3 38.6 45.0 56.5
Earnings From
Continuing Operations 265 33.3 28.0 22.5 48.1 355 42.8 53.4
Earnings From Discontinued
Operations, Net of Tax 200.0 33.3 0.0 (50.0) (50.0) 0.0 (25.0) 100.0
Net Earnings 27.6 33.3 27.8 21.7 46.3 351 41.9 53.8
Basic Earnings Per Share 26.8 31.8 26.8 20.0 46.4 375 39.5 55.2
Diluted Earnings Per Share 27.5% 30.2% 25.4% 20.5% 42.9% 34.4% 40.5% 51.7%
Earnings Statement Percentages
Percent of sales to nearest hundredth; income tax is % of pre-tax earnings
Fiscal 2003 Fiscal 2002
Quarter Ended 1/30/04 10/31/03 8/1/03 5/2/03 1/31/03 11/1/02 8/2/02 5/3/02
Net Sales 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Gross Margin 32.00 31.29 30.30 31.17 31.77 30.79 29.55 29.86
Expenses:
SG&A 19.00 18.59 16.34 18.25 19.07 18.65 16.51 17.70
Store Opening Costs 0.62 0.47 0.31 0.27 0.66 0.44 0.32 0.58
Depreciation 2,80 2.46 2.12 2.51 2.78 2.50 2.06 2.26
Interest 0.62 0.54 0.52 0.67 0.75 0.70 0.62 0.74
Total Expenses 23.04 22.06 19.29 21.70 23.26 22.29 19.51 21.28
Pre-Tax Earnings 8.96 9.23 11.01 9.47 8.51 8.50 10.04 8.58
Income Tax Provision 38.31 37.78 37.74 37.83 38.33 37.43 37.38 . 3748
Earnings From .
Continuing Operations 5.53 5.74 6.85 5.89 5.25 5.32 6.28 5.37
Earnings From Discontinued
Operations, Net of Tax 0.08 0.05 0.04 0.02 0.03 0.05 0.04 0.06
Net Earnings 5.61% 5.79% 6.89% 5.91% 5.28% 5.37% 6.32% 5.43%

2003 ANNUAL REPORT | 39




VIVRIN L VLAV ARIALING |\ VIIAUSLILONL )

365

$60

855

$50

$45

840

$35

$30

525

$20

$15

$10

$5

30

Lowe’s Quarterly Stock Price Range and Cash Dividend Payment*

Fiscal 2003

Fiscal 2002

Fiscal 2001
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480

t

High Low Dividend High Low Dividend High Low Dividend
st Quarter $ 46.00 $ 3337 $ 0.025 $ 4778 § 4135 $ 0.020 3230 $ 2479 $ 0.018
2nd Quarter 48.71 38.20 0.025 49.99 32.70 0.020 39.86 30.30 0.020
3rd Quarter 59.95 45,54 0.030 46.00 32,50 0.020 39.30 24.99 0.020
4th Quarter $ 6042 $ 50.75 $ 0.030 $ 4380 $ 33.86 $ 0.025 48.88 § 33.70 $ 0.020
* Adjusted for 2-for-1 stock split to shareholders of record on June 8, 2001, as applicable.
Monthly Stock Price and Trading Volume
Fiscal 2003 Fiscal 2002
Shares Shares
High Low Traded High Low Traded
February $ 39.66 $ 3337 89,268,500 $ 47.78 $ 4325 81,973,500
March 42.67 35.96 105,728,700 45.60 41.35 89,027,000
April 46.00 40.30 98,630,100 45.70 41,90 63,379,000
May 46.43 38.20 128,446,200 49.99 41.27 107,985,100
June 45.84 42.09 96,608,800 48,54 43.35 95,407,400
July 48.71 41.81 92,624,300 46.43 32.70 140,961,400
August 54.95 45.54 84,578,200 44,20 32.50 122,640,500
September 55.90 50.30 87,847,300 46.00 39.59 103,912,600
October 59.95 52.00 80,708,800 44,81 36.49 135,960,900
November 60.42 56.80 58,594,200 43.80 37.83 119,179,600
December 58.62 52.44 75,445,000 42.68 36.50 82,486,600
January $ 56.25 $ 5075 91,458,800 $ 3951 $§ 33.86 120,264,700
Source: The Wall Street Journal, Bloomberg
Lowe’s High/Low Stock Price Stock Splits and Stock Dividends
Adjusted for All Splits Since 1961
= A 100% stock dividend, effective April 5, 1966
(which had the net effect of a 2-for-1 stock split).
h » A 2-for-1 stock split, effective November 18, 1969.
» A 509% stock dividend, effective November 30, 1971
(which had the net effect of a 3-for-2 stock split).
» A 33/:% stock dividend, effective July 25,1972
{which had the net effect of a 4-for-3 stock split).
T + A 50% stock dividend, effective June 2, 1976
(which had the net effect of a 3-for-2 stock split).
« A 3-for-2 stock split, effective November 2, 1981.
« A 5-for-3 stock split, effective April 29, 1983.
« A 100% stock dividend, effective June 29, 1992
(which had the net effect of a 2-for-1 stock split).
T 4 » A 2-for-1 stock split, effective April 4, 1994.
» A 2-for-1 stock split, effective June 29, 1998.
v
» A 2-for-1 stock split, effective July 2, 2001.
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LOWC S LOINP4AIICS, LIC.
Selected Financial Data (Unaudited)

{In Millions, Except Per Share Data) 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Selected Statements of Earnings Data:
Net Sales $ 30,838 $ 26,112 $ 21,714 $ 18,368 $ 15,445
Gross Margin 9,607 7,948 6,287 5,208 4,288
Earnings from Continuing Operations 1,862 1,459 1,010 796 658
Earnings from Discontinued Operations, Net of Tax 15 12 ) 13 14 15
Net Earnings 1,877 1,471 1,023 810 673
Basic Earnings Per Share — Continuing Operations 237 1.87 1.31 1.04 0.86
Basic Earnings Per Share — Discontinued Operations 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.02
Basic Earnings Per Share 2.39 1.89 1.33 1.06 0.88
Diluted Earnings Per Share — Continuing Operations 2.32 1.83 1.28 1.03 0.86
Diluted Earnings Per Share — Discontinued Operations 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.02
Diluted Earnings Per Share 2.34 1.85 1.30 1.05 0.88
Dividends Per Share $ ol $ 009 $ 008 $ 007 $ 006
Selected Balance Sheet Data:
Total Assets § 19,042 § 16,109 $ 13,736 $ 11,358 $ 9,007
Long-Term Debt, Excluding Current Maturities $ 3,678 $ 3,736 $ 3,734 $ 2,698 $ 1,727
Selected Quarterly Data: First Second Third Fourth
2003
Net Sales $ 7,118 $ 8,666 $ 7,802 $ 7,252
Gross Margin 2,219 2,626 2,441 2,321
Earnings from Continuing Operations 419 594 448 401
Earnings from Discontinued Operations, Net of Tax 2 3 4 6
Net Earnings 421 597 452 407 '
Basic Earnings Per Share - Continuing Operations 0.54 0.76 0.57 0.51
Basic Earnings Per Share - Discontinued Operations - - 0.01 0.01
Basic Earnings Per Share 0.54 0.76 0.58 0.52
Diluted Earnings Per Share — Continuing Operations 0.53 0.75 0.55 0.50
Diluted Earnings Per Share - Discontinued Operations - - 0.01 0.01
Diluted Earnings Per Share $ 053 $ 075 $ 056 $ 051
2002
Net Sales $ 6373 $ 7,385 $ 6317 $ 6,037
Gross Margin 1,903 2,182 1,945 1,918
Earnings from Continuing Operations 342 464 336 317
Earnings from Discontinued Operations, Net of Tax 4 3 3 2
Net Earnings 346 467 339 319
Basic Earnings Per Share ~ Continuing Operations 0.44 0.59 0.44 0.41
Basic Earnings Per Share ~ Discontinued Operations 0.01 0.01 - -
Basic Earnings Per Share 0.45 0.60 0.44 0.41
Diluted Earnings Per Share — Continuing Operations 0.43 0.58 0.43 0.40
Diluted Earnings Per Share — Discontinued Operations 0.01 0.01 - -
Diluted Earnings Per Share $ 044 $ 059 $ 043 $ 040

Note: The selected financial data has been adjusted to reflect the 26 Contractor Yard locations sold in 2003 as a discontinued operation for all periods.

Sales by Product Category

2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001
{Dollars in Millions) Total Total Total (Dollars in Millions) Total Total Total
Product Category Sales % Sales % Sales % Product Category Sales % Sales % Sales %
Appliances ‘ $ 3508 11% $ 2987 11% $ 2413 11% Building Materials $ 1,659 5%  $ 1,404 5% § 1,252 6%
Lumber 2,642 9 2,224 9 2,006 9 Cabinets /
Paint 2,040 7 1,731 7 1,420 7 Furniture 1,233 4 1,028 4 809 4
Millwork 2,036 7 1,718 7 1,447 7 Qutdoor Power
QOutdoor Fashion 2,011 7 1,732 7 1,441 7 Equipment 1,231 3 1,004 4 817 3
Flooring 1,992 ‘6 1,645 6 1,264 6 Rough Plumbing 978 3 844 3 704 3
Nursery 1935 6 1,651 6 1,401 6 Walls / Windows 844 3 704 3 550 2
Fashion Electrical 1,850 6 1,581 6 1,310 6 Rough Electrical 787 3 681 2 581 3
Fashion Plumbing 1,812 6 1,551 6 1,263 6 Home Organization 667 2 527 2 419 2
Hardware 1,746 6 1,485 6 1,246 5 QOther 176 1 141 1 107 1
Tools $ 1,691 5% $ 1,474 5% $ 1,264 6% Totals $30,838 100%  $26,112 100% $21,714 100%
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10-YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION

5-year January 30, January 31, February 1, February 2,* January 28
Fiscal Years Ended On CGR 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Stores and People1
1 Number of Stores 13.9 952 828 718 624 55(
2 Square Footage (In Millions) 17.9 108.8 94,7 80.7 67.8 57.(
3 Number of Employees 15.4 147,052 120,692 107,404 93,669 85,14!
4 Customer Transactions (In Millions) 14.2 521 460 394 342 29¢
5  Average Purchase $ 59.21 $ 56.80 $ 55.05 $ 53.78 $ 51.7:
Comparative Income Statements (In Millions)1
6 Sales ' 19.0 $ 30,838 $ 26,112 $ 21,714 $ 18,368 $ 15,445
7  Depreciation 216 758 622 513 405 332
8 Interest 17.3 180 182 174 121 85
9  Pre-Tax Earnings 314 2,998 2,339 1,603 1,258 1,038
10  Income Tax Provision NM 1,136 880 593 462 380
11  Earnings from Continuing Operations 30.8 1,862 1,459 1,010 796 658
12 Earnings from Discontinued Operations, Net of Tax 32 15 12 13 14 15
13 Net Earnings 30.3 1,877 1,471 1,023 810 673
14 Cash Dividends 16.2 87 66 60 53 48
15 Earnings Retained 31.3 $ 1,790 $ 1,405 $§ 963 $ 757 $ 625
Dollars Per Share (Weighted Average Shares, Assuming Dilution)
16 Sales! 17.3 $ 38.26 $ 32.64 $ 27.31 $ 23.89 $ 20.11
17  Earnings 284 234 1.85 1.30 1.05 0.88
18  Cash Dividends 129 0.11 0.09 0.08 0.07 0.06
19 Earnings Retained 29.5 2.22 1.76 1.21 0.98 0.81
20  Shareholders’ Equity 21.6 $ 12.79 $ 10.38 $ 840 $ 715 $ 612
Financial Ratios
21 Asset Turnoverlr2 191 1.90 191 2.04 218
22 Return on Sales!>3 6.09% 5.63% 471% 4.41% 4.36¢
23 Return on Assets® 11.65% 10.71% 9.01% 8.99% 9.50¢
24 Return on Shareholders’ Equity5 22.61% 22.04% 18.62% 17.25% 18.59¢
Comparative Balance Sheets (In Millions)
25 Total Current Assets 18.5 $ 6,687 $ 5,568 $ 4,920 § 4,157 $ 3,688
26 Cash and Short-Term Investments 455 1,624 1,126 853 469 569
27  Accounts Receivable—Net (1.9) 131 172 166 161 148
28 Merchandise Inventory 14.0 4,584 3,968 3,611 3,285 2,812
29 Other Current Assets 451 289 244 197 161 105
30 Fixed Assets—Net 239 11,945 10,352 8,653 7,035 5,177
31 Other Assets 17.5 241 160 141 131 111
32 Total Assets 219 19,042 16,109 13,736 11,358 9,007
33 Total Current Liabilities 17.8 4,368 3,578 3,017 2,911 2,380
34  Accounts Payable 14.2 2,366 1,943 1,715 1,714 1,561
35 Other Current Liabilities 41.2 1,516 1,162 796 662 401
36 Equity/Long-Term Debt, Excluding Current Maturities 21.9 3,678 3,736 3,734 2,698 1,727
37 Total Liabilities 20.3 8,733 7,807 7,062 5,863 4,311
38  Shareholders’ Equity 23.3 $ 10,309 $ 8,302 $ 6,674 $ 5495 $ 4,695
39 Equity/Long-Term Debt, Excluding Current Maturities 2.80 2.22 1.79 2,04 2.72
40 Year-End Leverage Factor: Assets/Equity 1.85 1.94 2.06 2.07 1.92
Shareholders, Shares and Book Value
41  Shareholders of Record, Year-End 26,553 25,405 19,277 16,895 15,446
42 Shares Outstanding, Year-End (In Millions) 787 782 776 766 765
43 Weighted Average Shares, Assuming Dilution (In Millions) 806 800 795 769 768
44 Book Value Per Share $ 13.10 $ 10.62 $  8.60 $ 717 $ 6.14
Stock Price During Calendar Year® (Adjusted for Stock Splits)
45 High $ 6042 $ 49.99 $ 48.88 $ 33.63 $§ 3322
46 Low $ 3337 $ 32,50 $ 2479 $ 17.13 $ 21.50
47  Closing Price December 31 $ 5559 $ 36.50 $ 46.41 $ 2225 $ 29.88
Price/Earnings Ratio
48 High 26 27 38 32 38
49 Low 14 18 19 16 24

|
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January 29, January 30, January 31, January 31, January 31,
1999 1998 1997 1996 1995

1 497 456 410 372 340 1

2 47.8 39.9 337 26.8 209 2

3 71,792 63,261 57,859 47,738 40,019 3

4 268 230 195 163 136 4

5 $ 4837 $ 46.77 $ 46.38 $ 4559 $ 47.00 5

6 $ 12,946 $ 10,779 $ 9,057 $ 7,420 $ 6,38 6

7 285 253 207 156 114 7

8 81 71 55 46 33 8

9 766 581 471 362 331 9
10 279 209 166 129 122 10
11 487 372 305 233 209 11
12 13 11 10 9 8 12
13 500 383 315 242 217 13
14 41 38 35 30 27 14
15 $ 459 $ 345 $ 280 $ 212 $ 19 15
16 $ 17.22 $ 14.55 $ 1241 $ 10.38 $ 922 16
17 0.67 0.52 0.43 0.34 0.31 17
18 0.06 0.06 0.05 0.05 0.04 18
19 0.61 0.47 0.38 0.30 0.27 19
20 $  4.82 $ 4.02 $ 352 $ 260 $ 231 20
21 221 2.16 2.28 2.14 2.60 21
22 3.86% 3.55% 3.48% 3.26% 3.40% 22
23 8.53% 7.66% 7.94% 6.98% 8.85% 23
24 16.79% 14.91% 16.96% 15.10% 20.43% 24
25 $ 2,865 $ 2,427 $ 2,135 $ 1,805 $ 1,744 25
26 249 275 123 178 274 26
27 144 118 118 113 109 27
28 2,385 1,985 1,855 1,483 1,333 28
29 45 39 47 38 35 29
30 4,086 3,321 2,772 2,059 1,560 30
31 108 79 57 62 79 31
32 7,087 5,862 5,000 3,967 3,467 32
33 1,924 1,554 1,443 1,051 1,015 33
34 1,221 1,036 978 696 721 34
35 270 241 213 163 145 35
36 1,364 1,191 876 968 785 36
37 3,467 2,884 2,432 2,111 1,864 37
38 $ 3,620 $ 2,978 $ 2,568 $ 1,857 $ 1,603 38
39 2.65 2.50 2.93 1.92 2.04 39
4 1.96 1.97 1.95 2.14 2.16 40
11 14,508 12,386 12,530 12,728 11,360 41
1 749 738 731 673 667 42
H 752 741 730 715 693 43
i 5 483 § 403 § 351 $ 276 $ 240 44
H $ 2937 $ 12.89 $ 10.88 $§ 972 $ 1035 45
i $ 11.93 $ 8.09 $ 716 $ 650 $ 694 46
H $ 25.59 $ 11.93 $ 891 $ 838 $ 8.69 47
8 44 25 25 29 33 48
9 18 16 17 19 22 49

Explanatory Notes

! Amounts herein have beeni adjusted to reflect
the 26 Contractor Yard locations sold in 2003
as a discontinued operation.

2 Asset Turnover: Sales divided by Beginning Assets.
3 Return on Sales: Net Earnings divided by Sales.

4 Return on Assets: Net Earnings divided by
Beginning Assets.

5 Return on Shareholders’ Equity: Net Earnings
divided by Beginning Equity.

6 Stock Price Source: The Wall Street Journal

* Fiscal year ended February 2, 2001 contained
53 weeks. All other years contained 52 weeks.

NM = not meaningful
CGR = compound growth rate

2003 ANNUAL REPORT ’ 43

e



-t T A et WS A A R A N e N A NS

Robert L. Tillman

Leonard L. Berry, Ph.D.

Peter C. Browning

Paul Fulton

Dawn E. Hudson

Robert A. Ingram

Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer, Lowe’s Companies, Inc.,
Mooresville, NC 3*

Distinguished Professor of Marketing and
M.B. Zale Chair in Retailing and
Marketing Leadership, Texas A&-M
University, College Station, TX 2,4

Non-Executive Chairman of the Board,
Nucor Corporation, Dean of McColl
Gradugate School of Business at Queens
University of Charlotte, NC 2,3,4*

Chairman of the Board, Bassett Furniture
Industries, Bassett, VA 2%,3,4

President, Pepsi-Cola Company,
Purchase, NY 2,4

Chairman, OSI Pharmgceuticals, Inc.,
Vice Chairman Pharmaceuticals,
GlaxoSmithKline, Research Triangle Park,
NC 14

Executive Management

Robert L. Tillman

" Robert A. Niblock

Dale C. Pond

Larry D. Stone

Gregory M. Bridgeford

Theresa A. Anderson

Kenneth W. Black, Jr.

Michael K. Brown

Charles W. (Nick)
Canter, Jr.

Marshall A. Croom
Ricky D. Damron
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Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

President

Sentor Executive Vice President,
Merchandising/ Marketing

Senior Executive Vice President,
Operations

Executive Vice President,
Business Development

Senior Vice President and
General Merchandising Manager,
Home & Outdoor Living

Senior Vice President and
Chief Accounting Officer

Senior Vice President,
Store Operations — South Central

Senior Vice President,
Store Operations — North Central

Senior Vice President — Finance

Senior Vice President,
Store Operations — Northeast

Richard K. Lochridge

Claudine B. Malone

Robert A, Niblock

Stephen E Page

O. Temnple Sloan, Jr.

Committee Membership

Robert J. Gfeller, Jr.
Robert E Hull, Jr.

Perry G. Jennings
John L. Kasberger

}. Michael Mabry, Jr.
Ross W, McCanless

Michael K. Menser
David E. Shelton
Eric D. Sowder
John David Steed
Steven M. Stone
Robert F. Wagner

Gregory J. Wessling

President, Lochridge ¢~ Company,

Boston, MA 1%,3,4

President and Chief Executive Officer,
Financial & Management Consulting, Inc,
McLean, VA 14

President, Lowe’s Companies, Inc.,
Mooresville, NC

Vice Chairman and Chief Financial
Officer, United Technologies Corporation,
Hartford, CT 1,4

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
General Parts, Inc., Raleigh, NC 1,4

1 - Audit Committee

2~ Compensation and Organization Committee
3 ~ Executive Committee

4 - Governance Committee

* 2004 Committee Chairman

Senior Vice President, Marketing, Advertising
& Communications

Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Senior Vice President, Human Resources

Senior Vice President and General
Merchandising Manager — Hardlines

Senior Vice President, Distribution

Senior Vice President, General Counsel
and Secretary

Senior Vice President and General
Merchandising Manager — Home Décor

Senior Vice President,
Real Estate/Engineering & Construction

Senior Vice President, Logistics

Senior Vice President and
General Merchandising Manager —
Building Products

Senior Vice President and
Chief Information Officer

Senior Vice President,
Store Operations — West

Senior Vice President,
Store Operations — Southeast




Stock Transfer Agent & Registrar,
Dividend Disbursing Agent
and Dividend Reinvesting Agent

EquiServe Trust Company N.A.
150 Royall Street

Canton, MA 02021
877-282-1174

For direct deposit of dividends, registered shareholders
may call EquiServe at 877-282-1174.

Registered shareholders with e-mail addresses
can send account inquiries electronically to EquiServe
through its website at www.equiserve.com.

Registered shareholders may access their accounts
online by visiting www.equiserve.com and clicking on
Shareholder Services, Account Access.

Investors can join Lowe’s Stock Advantage Direct Stock
Purchase Plan by visiting www.Lowes.com/investor and
clicking on Shareholder Services, Buy Stock Direct.

Dividends
Lowe’s has paid a cash dividend each quarter since
becoming a public company in 1961.

Dividend declaration dates are usually the
middle of April, July, October and January.

Dividend payment dates are usually the last
of April, July, October and January.

_ Annual Meeting
May 28, 2004 at 10:00 a.m.
Park Hotel
Charlotte, NC

Lowe’s files reports with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC), including annual reports on Form
10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports
on Form 8-K and any other filings required by the SEC.
Certifications by Lowe’s Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer are included in Lowe’s SEC
reports as required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002. The reports Lowe’s files with the SEC, and
all amendments to those reports, are included on Lowe’s
website (www.Lowes.com) as soon as reasonably practi-
cable after Lowe’s files them with or furnishes them to
the SEC. These reports are available free of charge on or
through Lowe’s website. Copies of Lowe’s 2003 Annual
Report on Form 10-K and Quarterly Reports on Form
10-Q, and Annual Report to Shareholders are available
without charge upon written request to the Secretary at
Lowe’s corporate offices or by calling 888-345-6937.

Corporate and Investor Information

Corporate Offices :
1000 Lowe’s Boulevard !
Mooresville, NC 28117

704-758-1000

Lowe’s Website
www.Lowes.com

Stock Trading Information
Lowe’s common stock is listed on the New York :
Stock Exchange. (Ticker symbol: LOW)

General Counsel

Ross W. McCanless

Senior Vice President,
General Counsel & Secretary
704-758-1000

Independent Auditors
Deloitte & Touche LLP
1100 Carillon Building
227 West Trade Street
Charlotte, NC 28202-1675
704-372-3560

Shareholder Services
Shareholders’ and security analysts’ inquiries
should be directed to:

Paul Taaffe
Director, Investor Relations
704-758-2033

For copies of financial information:
888-34LOWES (888-345-6937)
or visit www.Lowes.com/investor

Media Inquiries should be directed to:

Chris Ahearn

Director, Public Relations
704-758-2304
www.Lowes.com/presspass

To view Lowe’s Social Responsibility Report, visit:
www.Lowes.com/socialresponsibility

Printing: Consistent with Lowe’s Companies’ wood fiber
procurement policy, this report is printed on paper made
from 30% post-consumer fiber with the remaining

70% coming from well-managed forests independently
certified to a sustainable forest management standard.
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